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 CITY OF MORGANTON 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
November 5, 2008                     
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Morganton: 
 
State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal 
year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants.  Pursuant to that requirement, the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of 
Morganton for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is hereby issued. 
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Morganton.  
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the 
information presented in this report.  To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, 
management of the City of Morganton has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable 
information for the preparation of the City of Morganton’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Because 
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Morganton’s comprehensive framework 
of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial 
statements will be free from material misstatement.  The City’s management asserts that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 
 
Eric Bowman, CPA, a licensed certified public accountant has audited the City of Morganton’s financial 
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements 
of the City of Morganton for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are free of material misstatement.  The 
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded, based upon the 
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Morganton’s financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The 
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
 
The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Morganton was part of a broader, federally 
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.  The standards 
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of 
the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and legal requirements involving 
the administration of federal awards.  These reports are available in the City of Morganton’s separately issued 
Single Audit Report. 
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City of Morganton’s MD&A can be 
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
The City of Morganton is located in Western North Carolina in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains. It is the 
County seat of Burke County (the “County”) and was chartered in 1784 and incorporated in 1885.  
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The City is the largest incorporated area in the County, encompasses approximately 19 square miles, and serves 
a population of 17,310. All of the major cultural, medical, governmental and financial activities of the County are 
located in the City. 
 
The City enjoys a temperate climate with a mild four-season year. The environmental attributes of the area 
contribute to the continual growth of tourism and overall the City is experiencing a gradual modest growth. The 
proximity of the Great Smokey Mountains, lakes James, Norman, and major urban centers make the physical 
location of the City convenient. The cities of Charlotte, North Carolina, Atlanta, Georgia and Knoxville, Tennessee 
are approximately 70 miles, 250 miles and 180 miles, respectively, from the City.  
 
The City is empowered by state statue to extend its corporate limits by annexation.  It engages in continual review 
of areas of potential future annexation by petition and statute.  
 
The City adopted the council-manager form of government in 1913, being the first in practice in the State. Policy 
formation and legislative authority are vested in the City Council which consists of a Mayor who is elected to a 
four-year term and four council members who are elected at large to four-year staggered terms. The City Council, 
among other things, passes ordinances, adopts an annual budget, appoints committees and hires the City 
Manager and City Attorney.  The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. 
 
The City Manager works at the pleasure of the City Council. The City Manager’s responsibilities include the 
implementation of the City Council’s policies and ordinances, hiring and supervision of the City’s 13 department 
heads and overall maintenance of the City’s day-to-day operations. The City Manager serves as the link between 
the elected body and the City’s employees. 
 
The City of Morganton provides a full range of governmental services, including public safety protection; the 
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; and recreational activities and 
cultural events.  The City of Morganton also provides public utilities including water, wastewater, electric and 
cable enterprises.  The City also operates a community house.  The City of Morganton also is financially 
accountable for the ABC Board and the Morganton Redevelopment Commission, both of which are reported 
separately within the City of Morganton’s financial statements.  Additional information on these legally separate 
entities can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Morganton’s financial planning and control.  The City’s 
budget is adopted by ordinance in accordance with the General Statutes of North Carolina, which requires 
estimated revenues and expenditures be balanced.  The budget includes only expenditures and revenues 
expected during the fiscal year.  The budget is adopted on a modified accrual basis with specifically identified 
outstanding encumbrances re-appropriated as part of the new budget year. 
 
All expected operating funds are included in the Budget Ordinance and are expended in accordance with the 
adopted ordinance.  The fiscal year budget, by State statute, begins July 1 and ends June 30.   
 
The Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act establishes the dates by which each stage of the annual 
budget process is to be completed.  Departmental requests are to be submitted to the budget officer before April 
30.  The recommended budget must be given to the City Council by June 1, and the Council must enact the 
budget ordinance by July 1. 
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The City of Morganton's budget process begins in November with the development of the capital improvements 
program (CIP).  The CIP is a six-year forecasting tool that shows capital costs divided among the years of the 
forecast period. The CIP is usually presented in the late fall to early winter at the annual planning workshop for 
the City Council.  The CIP consists of all expenditures for  equipment/vehicles, and repair or construction for all 
funds.  The expenditures are normally $5,000 or higher before they are included in the CIP. City Council reviews 
the presented CIP and gives informal approval.  The CIP is adopted as part of the annual budget ordinance that is 
enacted by July 1 annually. 
 
The operating budget, consisting of segments for salaries and benefits, operating costs, and performance 
indicators and goals, is sent to department directors in mid February.  Each segment is given a separate 
completion date. Final date for submission of all requests is mid March.  The first review of the budget requests is 
by the City Manager and the Finance Director with input from the department directors.  The proposed budget is 
then reviewed with the City Council at budget workshops.  The budget is presented at the June City Council 
Meeting and a public hearing is called for at a specially called meeting later in June. The Council then adopts the 
budget ordinance for the proposed budget at that specially called June meeting (after a thirty-day public comment 
period). 
 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., finance).  
Department heads may request the Budget Officer make transfers of appropriations within a department. 
Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require the special approval of the City Council. 
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an 
appropriated annual budget has been adopted.  For the general fund, this comparison is presented as part of the 
basic financial statements for the governmental funds.  For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with 
appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of this report.  
Also included in the governmental fund subsection are project-length budget-to-actual comparisons for each 
governmental fund for which a project-length budget has been adopted (i.e. the entitlement fund). 
 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
This information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Morganton operates. 
 
Local economy. The City serves as the retail trade and employment center for a majority of the approximately 
90,000 people of the County. Additionally, many people from sections of the surrounding counties of Avery, 
McDowell, Rutherford and Cleveland work or shop in the City. Eight banks, one savings and loan association and 
three credit unions serve the City. 
 
The principal manufacturing activities in the City include furniture and metal working with many other types of 
establishments providing a diversified manufacturing base. Agriculture is a large industry in the County with 
approximately 90,000 acres in farmland, but very little farming is done in the City. Government at local and State 
levels is a large employer in the City. City, County and several State-affiliated offices and facilities are located 
within the corporate limits. 
 
During the last few years there have been several significant events with a positive impact on the City’s economy. 
Most recently Viscotec, a state-of-the-art textile manufacturer, invested $55 million in a facility in the City. Another 
expansion is planned which will bring approximately one hundred new jobs to the Morganton community. The 
expansion of Viscotec symbolizes a renewal of one of the City’s economic foundations. 
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Long-term financial planning.  The City of Morganton has to be in a continued state of planning to keep up with 
the ever-changing environment of local government.  This is the ongoing charge to the elected officials as well as 
City staff. 
 
A comprehensive Recreation Plan was designed for the City during Fiscal Year 1996/1997.  This plan has been 
and will continue to be used, as a tool to address current and future recreational needs in the City.  The creation 
of such a plan demonstrated the commitment of the Council and staff to enhance quality of life in the Morganton 
community. 
 
The City Council has directed that a portion of the Electric Fund’s net assets be designated for use as a rate 
stabilization fund.  In short, this fund is to be used in the future to curb the rising cost of purchased power.  As the 
City’s costs rise, the rate stabilization fund can be used to fund the increase and curb the necessity of passing the 
cost increase along to the City’s customers.  The City Council feels very strongly that it must incorporate long-
range plans for all City utility services in order to facilitate the needs for the ever-changing environment of the 
industry.   
 
As further evidence of the Council’s commitment to the future, the City staff has been directed to maintain the 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Permanent Fund.  This fiduciary operation is designed to accumulate funds to provide 
ongoing care and upkeep for the City’s cemetery in later years.  Currently, transfers are not being made from the 
fund so as to allow accumulation of funds significant enough to provide perpetual care.   
 
Overall, the City is meeting the demands of the present while constantly planning for the future.  As always, the 
City of Morganton places the interest of its citizens as its number one priority.  The City Council and City staff are 
challenged daily, and as a result, the City of Morganton continues to prosper. 
 
Cash management policies and practices.  Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in certificates of 
deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper and the State Treasurer’s investment pool.  The 
maturities of the investments range from 30 days to 3 years, with an average maturity of less than 12 months.  
Investment income includes appreciation in the fair value of investments. Increases in fair value during the current 
year, however, do not necessarily represent trends that will continue; nor is it always possible to realize such 
amounts, especially in the case of temporary changes in the fair value of investments that the government intends 
to hold to maturity. 
 
Risk management.  Third-party coverage, through the North Carolina League of Municipalities, is currently 
maintained for individual workers’ compensation claims.  Additional information on the City of Morganton’s risk 
management activity can be found in Note V of the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Pension and other postemployment benefits.  The City of Morganton offers a single-employer defined benefit 
pension plan, a state-sponsored separation allowance, for its public safety employees. An independent actuary 
engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the City of Morganton must 
make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a 
timely basis.  
 
The City of Morganton also provides pension benefits for its non-public-safety employees.  These benefits are 
provided through a statewide plan managed by the State Pension Board.  The City of Morganton has no 
obligation in connection with employee benefits offered through this plan beyond its annual contractual payment 
to the State Pension Board. 
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The City of Morganton offers 401K and 457B plans for employees to participate in on an optional basis.  The City 
does contribute funds to either of these plans for non-sworn employees. 
 
The City of Morganton also provides postretirement health care benefits for retirees and their dependents. As of 
the end of the current fiscal year, there were 72 retired employees receiving these benefits, which are financed on 
a pay-as-you-go basis.  GAAP does not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in 
connection with an employer’s obligation to provide these benefits. 
 
Additional information on the City of Morganton’s pension arrangements and postemployment benefits can be 
found in Note V in the notes to the financial statements. 
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S. Eric Bowrnan, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Grsen Streot
P.O. Box 1476
Morganton, NC 28680-1476
Telophone (828) 438-1065
Fax (828\ 438-9117

Independent Auditort s Report

To the Honorabfe ayor
and MeII fels of the City Council
City of Morganton, North Carolina

[{e have audited the accompanying fj-nancial statements of the goverrmental
activities. the.business-type activities, the discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate rernaining fund information of the City of
Morganton. North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which
collectively conprise the Cityr s basj.c financia.l statements as .Iisted in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of
Morganton's managqnent. our responsibiLity is to express opinions on these basic
financial statenents based on our audit. we did not audit the financial statements
of the City of Morganton ABC Board. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the city of Morganton ABC Board,
is  based sole ly  on the repor ts  of  the other  audi tors.

I{e conducted our audit in accordance with auditj-ng standards generall-y
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financiaL
audjts contained in @, issued by the Comptroll-er
General of the United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabfe assurance about whether the basic financi-al statements
are free of material misstatement. The fj-nanciaf statements of City of Morganton
ABc Board were not audited in accordance with covernment Auditing standards. An
audjt includes exanining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
discLosures in  the f inanciaL statements.  An audi t  a lso inc ludes assessing the
accounting principLes used and the significant estj-mates nade by management, as
wel l  as evaluat ing the overaL]  f inancia l  s tatement  presentat ion.  We beLieve that
our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonab.Le basis for our
oplnrons.
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In  our  op in ion ,  based on  our  aud i t  and the  repor t  o f  the  o ther  aud i to rs '  t l re

f j -nanc iaJ-  s ta tements  re fe r red  to  above present  fa i r l y ,  in  a I I  na ter ia l  resPects ,

the  f inanc ia f  pos i t ion  o f  the  governmenta . I  ac t i v i t ies ,  the  bus iness-Eype

act iv i t ies .  the  d isc re te ly  p re ien ted  conponent  un i ts ,  each na jox  fund '  o f  the  C i ty

o f  Morganton ,  t to r t t r  caro l ina  as  o f  , fune 30 ,  2008,  and the  resPect ive  changes in

f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  and cash f fows,  where  appropr ia te ,  thereo f  and the  resPect ive

budgetary tornparison for tbe General Fund and the Capital Reserve Fund for the

year then ended in conformity with accounting pxinciPles general-Iy accepted in the

Uni ted  Sta tes  o f  Amer ica .

Management 's  D iscuss ion  and Ana. lys is  and the  Law Enforcement  Of f i cers '

Spec ia l  Separa t ion  A l fowance schedu le  o f  Fund ing  Progress  and Schedufe  o f  Bnp loyer

Contx ibu t ions  are  noL a  requ i red  Par t  o f  the  bas ic  f inanc ia f  s ta tements  bu t  a re

supp lementary  in fo rna t ion  iequ i rea  by  the  Governnenta l  Account ing  s tandards  Board '

t ' l e  and the  o ther  aud i to rs  have app l ied  cer ta in  I im i ted  procedures ,  wh ich  cons is ted

pr inc ipa t ly  o f  inqu i - r ies  o f  managenent  regardrng  the  ne thods  o f  measurernent  and

presenta t ion  o f  the  requ i red  supp lenentary  in fo rmat ion '  However '  we d id  no t  aud i t

th is  in fo rmat ion  and express  no  op j .n ion  thereon '

In  accordance w i th  Government  Aud i t inq  s tandards ,  we have a l -so  lssued our

repor t  da ted  August  15 ,  2008 on  
" " r  

cons j -dexat ion  o f  C i ty  o f  Morganton 's  in te rna l

cont ro f  over  f inanc ia l  repor t ing  and our  tes ts  o f  i t s  compt iance w i th  cer ta in

prov is ions  o f  Laws,  regu la t ions ,  con t rac ts ,  g l tan t  agreernents  and o ther .mat te rs '

ihe p,].pose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of interna.I

control over financial reporting and conpfiance and the resul-ts of that testing and

not to provide an opinion on iniernal control ' over financial rePorting or on

compliance. That rePort is an integral part of an audit perfoflned in accordance

witir Governnent Auditing Standards and shou.ld be read in conjunction with this

repor t  in  cons ider ing  the  resuLts  o f  oux  audr t '

Our audit was perforrned for the Purpose of forming opi-nions on the basic

financj-al statements of the City of Morganton, North Carolina' taken as a whole'

The individuaL fund financiaf statements and schedules, as well as the accompanying

schedu le  o f  expend i tu res  o f  federa l  and Sta te  awards  as  requ i red  by  U 'S '  o f f i ce  o f

Management and Budget Circufar A-133' Audjts of States, Locaf Governnents' and l 'on -

Profit Oxganizations, and the State Single Audit Inplementation Act'-and the

statisticaL infornation are pxesented for purPoses of additional analysis and are

not a required part of the basic financiaf statements ' Such infonnation has been

subjected to the auditing procedures aPplied in the audit of the basic financiaL

statements and, in ott. opltt i.ott. is fairly stated, in all material resPects' in

re fa t ion  to  tbe  bas ic  f inanc ia ]  s ta tements  taken as  a  who l "e '

3, -t- t-./
S. Eric Bowrnan' P. A.
Certified Public Accountant

Morgantonr North Carolina
August  15 ,  2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 

As management of the City of Morganton, we offer readers of the City of Morganton’s financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Morganton for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2008.  We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follows this 
narrative. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets of the City of Morganton exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 

$122,546,545 (net assets). 
 The government’s total net assets decreased by $2,721,184 split between decreases in governmental 

activities and business-type activities net assets. 
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Morganton’s governmental funds reported 

combined ending fund balances of $15,785,461 an increase of $1,434,075 in comparison with the 
prior year.  Approximately 72 percent of this amount, or $11,320,104, is available for spending at the 
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $5,584,200, 
or 28 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. 

 The City of Morganton’s total debt increased by $1,193,653 (8%) during the current fiscal year. 
 Standard & Poors and Moody’s Investors Service reviewed the City of Morganton bond ratings in April 

2003.  The City maintained its ratings of A+/A2. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Morganton’s basic 
financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see figure 
1).  The basic financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-
wide statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report 
contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial 
condition of the City of Morganton.  
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
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Summary → Detail 
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide 
Financial Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the City’s financial 
status. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 10) are the Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus 
on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s government.  These statements provide more detail 
than the government-wide statements.  There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the 
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund 
statements. 
 
The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes.  The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements.  After the notes, supplemental 
information is provided to show details about the City’s individual funds.  Budgetary information required 
by the General Statues also can be found in this part of the statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the 
City’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The government-
wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have changed.  Net 
assets are the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities.  Measuring net assets is one 
way to gage the City’s financial condition. 
 
The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) 
business-type activities; and 3) component units. 
 
The governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public safety, culture and 
recreation, and general administration.  Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of 
these activities. 
 
The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide.  These include water, 
electric, cable, wastewater and community house services offered by the City of Morganton.  
 
The final category is the component units.  Although legally separate from the City, the ABC Board and the 
Morganton Redevelopment Commission are important to the City because the City exercises control over 
the Board’s by appointing their members and because in the case of the ABC Board, it is required to 
distribute its profits to the City. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant activities.  A fund 
is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Morganton, like all other governmental entities 
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with 
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance.  All of the 
funds of the City of Morganton can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Most of the City’s basic services are 
accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into 
cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next 
year.  Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, 
which provides a short-term spending focus.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give 
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial 
resources available to finance the City’s programs.  The relationship between government activities 
(reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is 
described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 

 
The City of Morganton adopts an annual budget for its General Fund and Capital Reserve Fund, as 
required by the General Statues.  The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from 
the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services 
to provide and how to pay for them.  It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to 
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finance these current period activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund 
demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City 
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted.  The budgetary 
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, 
language, and classifications as the legal budget document.  The statement shows four columns: 1) the 
original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual 
resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in these funds; and 4) the difference or 
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.  To account for the difference 
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the 
differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.  
 
Proprietary Funds – The City of Morganton has two different kinds of proprietary funds.  Enterprise 
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  The City of Morganton uses enterprise funds to account for its water, electric, 
wastewater, cable, and community house operations.  These funds are the same as those functions 
shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.  
Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among 
City functions.  The City uses an internal service fund to account for the activities of the management 
information systems, central warehouse and garage operations.  Because this operation benefits 
predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service fund has been 
included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to 
the financial statements are an integral part of this report. 
 
Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Morganton’s progress in 
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary information 
can be found after the financial statements in this report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
The government-wide financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 were the beginning of a 
new era in financial reporting for the City of Morganton and many other units of government across the 
United States.  Prior to that year, the City of Morganton maintained their governmental and proprietary 
fund groups as two separate and very distinct types of accounting without any type of consolidated 
statement that accurately reflected the operations and net assets of the government as a whole.  There 
was a total column that appeared on the financial statements, but it was a memorandum total only.  No 
attempt was made to adjust the statements in such a way that the total column would represent the overall 
financial condition of the City of Morganton.  These statements were basically the equivalent of the fund 
financial statements that appear in this report with fiduciary funds and two account groups, the long-term 
debt and the general fixed assets, added in. 
 
The changes in the financial statement reporting are mandated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  GASB Statement 34 dictated the changes you see in the City of Morganton’s 
financial reports as well as those of many other units of government.  While the City of Morganton was 
required to implement these changes for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003; other units were not 
required to implement until 2004. 
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The City of Morganton’s Net Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

 
   Governmental-type          Business-type 
                      Activities              Activities       Total   
             2008                2007              2008                 2007 2008             2007  
Current and other assets   $19,396,233 $17,716,376        $20,598,029   $24,321,591    $39,994,262   $42,038,067    
Capital assets            44,326,038   42,576,769          59,310,746     60,502,888    103,636,784   103,079,657   
 Total assets        63,722,271   60,293,145          79,908,775     84,824,579    143,631,046   145,117,724  
 
L T liabilities outstanding      4,796,375     1,487,265          11,299,328    13,727,096       16,095,703     15,214,361     
Other liabilities                      1,794,327     1,714,603            3,194,471      2,921,031         4,988,798       4,635,634    
 Total liabilities       6,590,702        3,201,868          14,493,799    16,648,127       21,084,501    19,849,995     
Net assets: 
   Invested in capital assets,      
    net of related debt          40,439,879  41,831,482      48,204,805    46,963,961     88,644,684    88,795,443    
   Restricted             1,404,040           745,287                                                        1,404,040         745,287 
   Unrestricted           15,287,650      14,514,508      17,210,171    21,212,491     32,497,821    35,726,999     
     Total net assets          $57,131,569    $57,091,277            $65,414,976  $68,176,452  $122,546,545 $125,267,729  
 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial 
condition.  The assets of the City of Morganton exceeded liabilities by $121,546,545 as of June 30, 2008.  
The largest portion of the City’s net assets is reflected in the City’s investment in capital assets (less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.)  The City of Morganton uses these 
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the City of Morganton’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the 
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, 
since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  An additional portion of the City of 
Morganton’s net assets ($1,404,040) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 
they may be used.  The remaining balance of $32,497,821 is unrestricted. 
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City of Morganton’s Changes in Net Assets 
  

 Governmental-type 
Activities 

           Business-type 
Activities 

 
Total 

      

 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

Revenues:   

   Program revenues:   

      Charges for services $2,027,002 $2,034,227 $35,292,783 $35,002,657 $37,319,785 $37,036,884

      Operating grants and   

         Contributions 1,100,958 998,104 21,734 21,016 1,122,692 1,019,120

      Capital grants and   

         Contributions 258,646 173,500 258,646 173,500

   General revenues:   

      Ad valorem taxes 7,769,020 7,136,838 7,769,020 7,136,838 

      Other taxes                      3,353,209 3,111,379 3,353,209 3,111,379

      Unrestricted                          
           Intergovernmental    

 
1,936,451 1,827,140 

 
1,936,451 1,827,140 

   

      Investment earnings             
   

861,266 827,704 815,522 862,651 1,676,788 1,690,355

      Other                                245,750 1,140,440 240,188 152,147 485,938 1,292,587

Total revenues 17,552,302 17,075,832 36,370,227 36,211,971 53,922,529 53,287,803

   

Expenses:   

   General government                 2,853,101 2,648,106 2,853,101 2,648,106 

   Public safety                       7,094,187 6,551,152 7,094,187 6,551,152 

   Transportation                       2,476,434 2,231,645 2,476,434 2,231,645 

   Economic and physical            
        Development     

 
117,668 50,308 

 
117,668 50,308 

   Environmental protection         
    

1,216,620 1,098,597 1,216,620 1,098,597

   Culture and recreation             
  

4,236,367 3,637,978 4,236,367 3,637,978 

   Interest on long-term debt       
      

103,428 46,370 103,428 46,370 

   Water           3,634,869 3,169,593 3,634,869 3,169,593

   Wastewater          4,077,418 3,380,132 4,077,418 3,380,132

   Electric           26,505,211 25,241,193 26,505,211 25,241,193 

   Cable             4,015,776 4,001,462 4,015,776 4,001,462 

   Community House  312,634 323,251 312,634 323,251 

             Total expenses 18,097,805 16,264,156 38,545,908 36,115,631 56,643,713 52,379,787 

   

Increase (decrease) in net 
assets before 

  

   transfers (545,503) 811,676 (2,175,681) 96,340 (2,721,184) 908,016 

   

Transfers                                 585,795 744,259 (585,795) (744,259)  

   

Increase(decrease) in net 
assets 

40,292 1,555,935 (2,761,476) (647,919) (2,721,184) 908,016 

Net assets, July 1                     
Prior period adjustment 

57,091,277 
 

55,295,114
240,228

68,176,452 68,824,371 125,267,729 124,119,485
240,228 

                                                   
                                                   
    Net assets, June 30 

 
 

$57,131,569 $57,091,277 $65,414,976 $68,176,452

 
 

$122,546,545 $125,267,729 
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Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $40,292, thereby 
accounting for all of the total growth in the net assets of the City of Morganton. 
 
Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net assets: 

 Property tax revenue increased by 632,182 (8.8 percent) during the year.   
 Despite lower interest rates the City realized a small increase in interest earnings. 

 
Business-type activities: Business-type activities decreased the City of Morganton’s net assets by 
$2,761,476, accounting for a reduction in the government’s overall net assets. 
 
The most significant element of this decrease is in the electric fund which experienced an operating loss  
$3,082,891.  This increase is due to the increase of the cost of purchasing power. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds:  As noted earlier, the City of Morganton uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the City of Morganton’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 
the City of Morganton’s financing requirements.  Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful 
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morganton’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balance of $15,785,461, an increase of $1,434,075 in comparison with the prior year.  
Approximately 72% of this total amount ($11,320,104) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is 
available for spending at the government’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved or 
designated to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 

 To liquidate purchase orders of the prior period 
 To sustain canteen operations 
 To use on streets 
 For drug enforcement/DARE programs 

 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Morganton.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $7,321,962, while total fund balance reached 
$11,787,319.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unreserved fund balance represents 36 
percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 58 percent of that same 
amount. 
 
At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of the City of Morganton reported a combined fund balance of 
$15,785,461. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, there was a $3,769,883 increase in 
appropriations between the original and final amended budget.  Generally, budget amendments fall into 
one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original 
budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding 
amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that 
become necessary to maintain services. 
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During the year there were several increases in appropriations between the original budget and the final 
amended budget.  Following are the main components of the increase: 
 

 Purchase order rollover’s from previous year ($3,128,905) 
 Purchase of additional voting machine ($4,995) 
 Economic Development marketing program ($24,065) 
 Carolina transformer lawsuit legal fees ($121,918) 
 Catawba Meadows project ($490,000) 

 
Significant variances between the final amended budget and actual expenses include: 
 

 General fund revenues budgeted closely reflected revenue received.  No significant variances 
exist. 

 Recreation administration was under budget due to not completing projects which were budgeted 
for the 2007/08 fiscal year. 

 
Proprietary Funds.  The City of Morganton’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail.  Unrestricted net assets of the proprietary funds 
amounted to $17,210,171.  Factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed 
in the discussion of the City of Morganton’s business-type activities. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration   
 
Capital assets.  The City of Morganton’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2008 totals $103,636,784 (net of accumulated depreciation).  These assets 
include land, buildings, plant and system, equipment and infrastructure.   
 
There were not any major capital asset transactions during the year.  There were not significant 
demolitions or disposals. 

City of Morganton’s Capital Assets 
(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

  
   Governmental-type      Business-type 

             Activities                          Activities  Total   
            2008      2007        2008            2007     2008           2007  
Land and Buildings     $19,973,442   $17,459,042    $23,608,079 $23,980,306    $43,581,521     $41,439,348      
Plant and System                   31,460,149   32,313,272      31,460,149        32,313,272      
Equipment        8,373,064       8,044,158        4,242,518     4,209,310      12,615,582        12,253,468  
Infrastructure      15,979,532     17,073,569                                     15,979,532       17,073,569  

Total    $44,326,038   $42,576,769   $59,310,746  $60,502,888   $103,636,784   $103,079,657 
 
 

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the Basic Financial 
Statements; specifically, in Section IV, Detail notes on all funds, Capital Assets section. 
 
Long-term Debt.  As of June 30, 2008 the City of Morganton had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$8,175,000 all of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

 
City of Morganton’s Outstanding Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 
  

Business-type Activities 
    2008          2007           
G O Bonds    $8,175,000 $9,495,600  
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As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, the City of Morganton maintained its 
bond ratings after being reviewed by Standard & Poors and Moody’s Investors Service in April 2003.  The 
City’s ratings of A+/A2 are a clear indication of the sound financial condition of the City of Morganton. 
 
North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a unit of government can issue 
to 8 percent of total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s boundaries.  The 
legal debt margin for the City of Morganton is $139,362,012. 
 
See the notes to the financial statements for additional information regarding the City of Morganton’s long-
term debt; specifically, in Section IV, Detail notes on all funds, Long-Term Obligations section. 
 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City. 
 

 Viscotec, a state-of-the-art textile manufacturer, invested $40 million in Phase 1 of a facility in the 
City.  Phase 2, a $15 million investment, is currently underway.  The opening of Viscotec 
symbolized a renewal of one of the City’s economic foundations.  A third expansion is planned. 

 As is indicative of this part of the country, the local economic environment is experiencing some 
difficulties.  The Hickory-Morganton-Lenoir MSA’s unemployment rate of 7.4% is higher than the 
State’s rate of 6.2% and the national rate of 5.5%.  The MSA’s labor force of 170,900 continues to 
remain virtually constant.  Increased unemployment can be directly attributed to industry slow-
downs and plant closings throughout the MSA. 

 
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008 
 
Governmental Activities: All revenues, for all funds, are projected based on trend analysis, estimates 
provided by the North Carolina League of Municipalities and assumed increases or decreases in usage.  
The City of Morganton responsibly and conservatively budgets its revenues.  Assumptions used in 
budgeting major revenues are as follows: 
 
Ad Valorem taxes are based on current valuations, as provided by the Burke County tax office, adjusted 
for anticipated annexations, discoveries and releases.   
 
Other taxes and licenses such as privilege licenses are forecasted based on past trends and future 
predictions. 
 
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenues, such as Franchise Tax and Sales Tax reimbursements are 
budgeted based on past amounts received, adjusted for growth and local economic influences. 
 
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues are primarily grant-related.  Budgets are based on anticipated 
grant awards. 
 
Sales and Service revenues vary in nature.  The largest of these revenues, in the General Fund, are 
commercial solid waste user fees, City of Morganton Municipal Auditorium ticket sales and recreation 
program fees.  The basis for budgeting these revenues is a factor of the number of participants (or users) 
multiplied by the appropriate rate or fee.   
 
Overall the City of Morganton’s governmental funds budget for 2008-2009 represents a decrease of 12% 
or $3,173,350 over the 2007-2008 budget. 
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Business-type Activities: Sales and services revenues are based on estimated usage or consumption 
multiplied by the applicable rates.  The 2008-2009 business-type activities budget overall is 1% or 
$438,071 higher than the 2007-2008 budget.   

 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an interest in this area.  
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information 
should be directed to the Director of Finance, City of Morganton, P O Box 3448, Morganton, NC  28655. 
 
 
 



Exhibit 1

Morganton
Governmental Business-type Morganton Redevelopment

ASSETS Activities Activities Total ABC Board Commission
Cash and cash equivalents $3,652,164 $838,298 $4,490,462 $103,238 $144,667
Investments 12,782,102 16,015,155 28,797,257
Taxes receivable (net) 114,562 114,562
Accrued interest receivable-taxes  4,697 4,697
Interest receivable-investments 217,926 147,347 365,273
Accounts receivable (net) 1,082,160 3,564,923 4,647,083
Expendable restricted cash 538,481 538,481
Nonexpendable restricted cash 11,859 11,859
Inventories 900,107 900,107 240,961
Notes receivable (net) 104,034 20,447 124,481
Capital assets (net of accumulated
     depreciation):
          Land and buildings 19,973,442 23,608,079 43,581,521 73,261 1,069,967
          Plant and system 31,460,149 31,460,149
          Equipment 8,373,064 4,242,518 12,615,582 50,906
          Infrastructure 15,979,532 15,979,532
     Total assets 63,722,271 79,908,775 143,631,046 468,366 1,214,634

LIABILITIES
     Accounts payable and 
         current liabilities 1,692,504 2,744,859 4,437,363 240,431
     Customer deposits 437,753 437,753 10,265
     Unearned revenue 81,159 81,159
     Matured bonds and coupons outstanding 11,859 11,859
     Accrued interest payable 20,664 20,664
     Noncurrent liabilities: 
           Due within one year:
              Installment purchases payable 459,283 1,227,024 1,686,307
              Bonds payable 1,365,000 1,365,000
              Notes payable 40,000 40,000 134,989
              Compensated absences payable 337,614 337,614
           Due in more than one year:
              Installment purchases payable 3,371,876 2,156,295 5,528,171
              Bonds payable 6,345,763 6,345,763
              Notes payable 15,000 15,000
              Compensated absences payable 412,639 205,246 617,885
              Net pension obligation 159,963 159,963
     Total liabilities 6,590,702 14,493,799 21,084,501 240,431 145,254

NET ASSETS
     Invested in capital assets,
          net of related debt 40,439,879 48,204,805 88,644,684 124,167 934,978
     Restricted for:
      Expenable:
         Public Safety 103,153 103,153 32,935
         Economic Development 377,884 377,884
         Culture and Recreation 923,003 923,003
     Unrestricted 15,287,650 17,210,171 32,497,821 70,833 134,402
             Total net assets $57,131,569 $65,414,976 $122,546,545 $227,935 $1,069,380

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government Component Units

JUNE 30, 2008
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Exhibit 2

                                                                                

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary government:

   Governmental activities

        General government $2,853,101 $232,411 $349,737

        Public Safety 7,094,187 46,702 8,646

        Transportation 2,476,434 7,656 592,731

        Economic and physical development 117,668 158,490

        Environmental protection 1,216,620 1,062,990

        Culture and recreation 4,236,367 677,243 250,000

        Interest on long-term debt 103,428

          Total governmental activities 18,097,805 2,027,002 1,100,958 258,646

   Business-type activities:

        Water 3,634,869 4,011,287

        Wastewater 4,077,418 4,138,754

        Electric 26,505,211 23,422,320

        Cable 4,015,776 3,496,493

        Community house 312,634 223,929 21,734

          Total business-type activities 38,545,908 35,292,783 21,734

Total primary government $56,643,713 $37,319,785 $1,122,692 $258,646

Component units:

   Morganton ABC board 781,576 778,230

   Morganton redevelopment commission   3,079
Total component units 784,655 778,230

General revenues:

     Ad valorem taxes

     Privilege licenses

     Carbon city fire tax

     Occupancy tax

     One-half cent sales tax

     One cent sales tax

     Unrestriced intergovernmental revenues

     Investment earnings

     Other revenues

Transfers

Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset

        Total general revenues and transfers

          Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Program Revenues

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CITY OF MORGANTON
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Morganton

Governmental Business-type Morganton Redevelopment 

Activities Activities Total ABC Board Commission

($2,270,953) ($2,270,953)

(7,038,839) (7,038,839)

(1,876,047) (1,876,047)

40,822 40,822

(153,630) (153,630)

(3,309,124) (3,309,124)

(103,428) (103,428)

(14,711,199) (14,711,199)

376,418 376,418

61,336 61,336

(3,082,891) (3,082,891)

(519,283) (519,283)

(66,971) (66,971)

(3,231,391) (3,231,391)

(14,711,199) (3,231,391) (17,942,590)

($3,346)

($3,079)
(3,346) (3,079)

7,769,020 7,769,020

57,351 57,351

7,729 7,729

21,911 21,911

2,243,580 2,243,580

1,022,638 1,022,638

1,936,451 1,936,451

861,266 815,522 1,676,788 3,511

245,750 240,188 485,938

585,795 (585,795)

(1,822)

14,751,491 469,915 15,221,406 3,511 (1,822)

40,292 (2,761,476) (2,721,184) 165 (4,901)

57,091,277 68,176,452 125,267,729 227,770 1,074,281
$57,131,569 $65,414,976 $122,546,545 $227,935 $1,069,380

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Units

-15-



CDBG Capital Total
Entitlement Reserve Permanent Governmental

ASSETS General Fund Fund Fund Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $2,340,850 $60,500 $397,350 $7,934 $2,806,634
Restricted cash 538,481 538,481
Investments 9,349,267 3,053,520 379,315 12,782,102
Taxes receivable (net) 114,562 114,562
Accounts receivable (net) 1,073,801 7,545 1,081,346
Interest receivable 119,337 95,223 3,366 217,926
Notes receivable (net) 104,034 104,034
     Total assets $13,640,332 $68,045 $3,546,093 $390,615 $17,645,085

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
     Accounts payable and 
         accrued liabilities 1,657,292 6,611 1,663,903
     Deferred revenue 195,721 195,721
          Total liabilities 1,853,013 6,611 1,859,624

Fund Balances:
     Reserved for:
         State statute 1,297,172 1,297,172
         Encumbrances 1,762,053 1,762,053
         Canteen operations 2,092 2,092
         Streets - Powell Bill 923,003 923,003
         Drug enforcement 66,330 66,330
         Economic development 377,884 377,884
         DARE programs 36,823 36,823
     Unreserved, reported in:
        Designated for CIP 1,737,762 1,737,762
        Undesignated 5,584,200 61,434 5,645,634
        Capital Reserve fund 3,546,093 3,546,093
        Permanent fund 390,615 390,615
             Total fund balances $11,787,319 $61,434 $3,546,093 390,615 15,785,461

Total liabilities and fund balances $13,640,332 $68,045 $3,546,093 $390,615

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

     Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not

          reported in the funds. 43,857,652
     Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are 

          not reported in the funds. 119,259
     The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the 

          statement of net assets. 2,149,504
     Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and 

          therefore are not reported in the funds. (4,759,643)
     Other liablities not reported in the funds (20,664)
              Net assets of governmental activities 57,131,569

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 3

JUNE 30, 2008
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CDBG Capital Total 
Entitlement Reserve Permanent Governmental 

REVENUES General Fund Fund Fund Funds
     Ad valorem taxes $7,787,684 7,787,684
     Other taxes and licenses 3,353,209 3,353,209
     Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,936,451 1,936,451
     Restricted intergovernmental revenues 1,145,850 $158,490 1,304,340
     Other restricted revenues 163,289 163,289
     Permits and fees 176,939 176,939
     Sales and services 1,837,032 $13,031 1,850,063
     Investment earnings 673,561 $173,937 13,768 861,266
     Other revenues 106,711 31,014 137,725
             Total revenues 17,180,726 189,504 173,937 26,799 17,570,966

EXPENDITURES
     Current
        General government 5,741,643 5,741,643
        Public safety 7,032,648 7,032,648
        Transportation 1,601,674 1,601,674
        Environmental protection 1,344,758 1,344,758
        Cultural and recreational 3,935,811 3,935,811
        Economic and physical development 117,668 117,668
     Debt service
        Principal retirement 412,798 40,000 452,798
        Interest and fees 83,935 5,411 89,346
             Total expenditures 20,153,267 163,079 20,316,346

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,972,541) 26,425 173,937 26,799 (2,745,380)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
     Financing proceeds 3,593,660 3,593,660
     Transfers - in 1,002,495 139,445 1,141,940
     Transfers - out (231,145) (325,000) (556,145)

             Total other financing sources (uses) 4,365,010 (185,555) 4,179,455

Net change in fund balances 1,392,469 26,425 (11,618) 26,799 1,434,075

Fund balances - beginning 10,394,850 35,009 3,557,711 363,816 14,351,386

Fund balances - ending $11,787,319 $61,434 $3,546,093 $390,615 $15,785,461

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 4

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

     Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $1,434,075

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This
is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the 
current period. 1,818,283

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (18,664)

The issuance of long-tem debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. (3,140,871)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. (180,028)

The net revenue of certain activities of the  internal service fund is reported with 
governmental activities. 127,497

     Change in net assets of governmental activities. $40,292

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES 
   Ad valorem taxes 
          Current year $7,586,758 $7,590,158 $7,550,741 ($39,417)
          Prior years 45,000 107,300 164,706 57,406
          Special tax - Main Street 105,143 108,143 109,304 1,161
          Interest 43,500 52,100 44,879 (7,221)
          Discounts (79,146) (79,146) (81,946) (2,800)
              Total 7,701,255 7,778,555 7,787,684 9,129

   Other taxes and licenses 
          Privilege licenses 57,700 57,700 57,351 (349)
          Carbon city fire tax 7,400 7,700 7,729 29
          Occupancy tax 50,000 21,911 (28,089)
          One-half cent sales tax 2,214,198 2,214,198 2,243,580 29,382
          One cent sales tax 930,547 930,547 1,022,638 92,091
              Total 3,209,845 3,260,145 3,353,209 93,064

   Unrestricted intergovernmental
        revenues 
          Urban renewal in lieu of taxes 25,000 25,000 24,000 (1,000)
          Section eight in lieu of taxes 3,200 3,200 2,700 (500)
          Electric in lieu of taxes 90,230 90,230 90,230
          Franchise tax 1,483,565 1,483,565 1,455,599 (27,966)
          Beer and wine 81,753 81,753 78,613 (3,140)
          Alcohol Beverage Commission 300,000 300,000 285,309 (14,691)
              Total 1,983,748 1,983,748 1,936,451 (47,297)

   Restricted intergovernmental
        revenues 
           Fire protection - state facilities    99,108 107,908 108,015 107
           Drug restitution 2,500 2,500 10 (2,490)
           ABC restitution 1,500 1,500 (1,500)
           PARTF grant 350,000 350,000 250,000 (100,000)
           School resource officer 215,648 215,648 186,448 (29,200)

 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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Budgeted Amounts

2008
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES - (continued) 
      Restricted intergovernmental 
         revenues - (continued) 
           Department of Justice
             grant $5,000 $5,000 $8,646 $3,646
           Powell bill street aid allocation 564,827 592,731 592,731 0
                 Total 1,238,583 1,275,287 1,145,850 (129,437)

      Other restricted revenues 
           Restricted contributions 200,000 150,000 163,289 13,289
           Shared curb & gutter 5,000 5,000 (5,000)

Total 205,000 155,000 163,289 8,289

      Permits and fees 
          Building permits 73,728 73,728 53,494 (20,234)
          Plumbing permits 33,000 33,000 27,260 (5,740)
          Electric permits 80,000 80,000 79,485 (515)
          Variance request 1,000 1,000 1,500 500
          Fire inspection revenue 5,000 14,900 15,200 300

Total 192,728 202,628 176,939 (25,689)

      Sales and services 
           Parking revenue 20,255 20,951 14,493 (6,458)
           Reimbursement for services 5,000 5,000 (5,000)
           Solid waste user fees 1,101,500 1,101,500 1,062,990 (38,510)
           Curb cuts 8,000 8,000 7,656 (344)
           Civil citations 500 500 (500)
           Rent 1,500 32,700 8,201 (24,499)
           Fire protection 10,000 10,000 2,600 (7,400)
           Recreation revenue 458,400 526,700 503,199 (23,501)
           Bad check charges 7,000 7,000 3,700 (3,300)
           Canteen sales 1,480 1,480 1,531 51
           Main street revenue 23,313 23,313 22,025 (1,288)
           Façade loan program 5,675 6,875 7,563 688
           DARE program 5,000 5,000 9,976 4,976
           Municipal auditorium ticket sales 179,000 179,000 174,044 (4,956)

CITY OF MORGANTON
GENERAL FUND

-20-

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
 BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

2008

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES - (continued) 
           Vision incentive program 10,000 10,000 (10,000)
           Reimbursements 
                Election - fees 120 120 (120)
                Morganton/Lenoir airport 1,200 1,200 128 (1,072)
                Court cost and fees 19,000 19,000 18,926 (74)

Total 1,856,943 1,958,339 1,837,032 (121,307)

      Investment earnings 550,500 798,100 673,561 (124,539)

      Other revenue 
           Miscellaneous 197,200 226,400 106,711 (119,689)
           Contributions 500 500 (500)
 Total 197,700 226,900 106,711 (120,189)

Total revenue 17,136,302 17,638,702 17,180,726 (457,976)

EXPENDITURES 
     General government 
         Legislative - city council 
            Salaries and employee benefits 58,738
            Operating expenditures 147,980
            Donations/economic development 614,162
            Elections 38,402
            Pro rata administrative services (698,511)

Total 202,372 281,297 160,771 120,526

         Legal 
            Salaries and employee benefits 179,618
            Operating expenditures 31,339
            Pro rata administrative services (168,745)

Total 42,186 49,386 42,212 7,174

CITY OF MORGANTON
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
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 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

2008
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
         Executive - city manager 
            Salaries and employee benefits $413,966
            Operating expenditures 58,302
            Pro rata administrative services (375,002)

Total $93,751 $102,451 97,266 $5,185

         Executive - human resources 
            Salaries and employee benefits 166,664
            Operating expenditures 449,491
            Pro rata administrative services (309,930)

Total 309,930 346,430 306,225 $40,205

         Purchasing 
            Salaries and employee benefits 49,374
            Operating expenditures 583,621
            Pro rata administrative services (367,409)

Total 244,939 318,992 265,586 53,406

         Main Street 
            Salaries and employee benefits $115,370
            Operating expenditures 210,665

Total 478,722 546,395 326,035 220,360

         Canteen operations  
            Operating expenditures 2,000 2,000 1,774 226

         Finance 
            Salaries and employee benefits 214,500
            Operating expenditures 90,914
            Pro rata administrative services (253,478)

Total 63,369 51,938 51,936 2

         Business office 
            Salaries and employee benefits 316,490
            Operating expenditures 155,544
            Pro rata administrative services (449,601)

Total 44,998 58,201 22,433 35,768

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

2008

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF MORGANTON
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES (continued) 
     General government (continued)
         Development 
            Salaries and employee benefits $512,485
            Operating expenditures 140,161
            Capital outlay 49,915

Total $818,685 $997,599 702,561 $295,038

         Municipal buildings 
            Operating expenditures 230,030
            Pro rata administrative services (259,992)
            Capital Outlay 3,027,951

Total 3,438,420 3,851,593 2,997,989 853,604

         Design
            Salaries and employee benefits 395,377
            Operating expenditures 101,526
            Pro rata administrative services (401,339)
            Capital outlay 19,248

Total 138,844 193,526 114,812 78,714

         Public works 
            Salaries and employee benefits 131,443
            Operating expenditures 12,815

Total 155,911 155,911 144,258 11,653

         Cemetery and grounds
            Salaries and employee benefits 409,503
            Operating expenditures 54,500
            Capital outlay 43,782

Total 618,671 618,671 507,785 110,886

Total general government 6,652,798 7,574,390 5,741,643 1,832,747

     Public safety 
        Police, fire and administrative operations 
            Salaries and employee benefits 5,567,088
            Operating expenditures 1,061,066
            Pro rata administrative services (19,200)
            Capital outlay 423,694

Total public safety 7,720,213 7,872,783 7,032,648 840,135

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES (continued)
     Transportation 
        Street department 
            Salaries and employee benefits $633,259
            Operating expenditures 238,505

Total $1,068,310 $1,199,310 871,764 $327,546

        Powell bill
            Salaries and employee benefits 186,739
            Operating expenditures 341,133
            Capital outlay 202,038

Total 637,756 767,747 729,910 37,837

Total transportation 1,706,066 1,967,057 1,601,674 365,383

     Environmental protection - sanitation
            Salaries and employee benefits 678,484
            Operating expenditures 357,298
            Capital outlay 308,976

Total environmental protection 1,253,239 1,286,739 1,344,758 (58,019)

     Cultural and recreational
        Municipal auditorium 
            Salaries and employee benefits 220,838
            Operating expenditures 429,150
            Capital outlay 50,505

Total 839,560 842,220 700,493 141,727

        Recreation
            Salaries and employee benefits 1,608,688
            Operating expenditures 1,477,830
            Capital outlay 148,800

Total 4,747,181 6,581,306 3,235,318 3,345,988

Total cultural and recreational 5,586,741 7,423,526 3,935,811 3,487,715

2008

Budgeted Amounts

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES (continued)
     Debt Service 
            Principal retirement $412,811 $412,811 $412,798 $13
            Interest 107,046 107,046 83,935 23,111

Total debt service 519,857 519,857 496,733 23,124

Total expenditures 23,438,914 26,644,352 20,153,267 6,491,085

Revenues over (under) expenditures (6,302,612) (9,005,650) (2,972,541) 6,033,109

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
    Appropriated fund balance 898,157 4,165,640 (4,165,640)
    Installment purchase proceeds 4,493,660 4,493,660 3,593,660 (900,000)
    Transfers out (91,700) (656,145) (231,145) 425,000
    Transfers in 1,002,495 1,002,495 1,002,495

Total other financing sources 6,302,612 9,005,650 4,365,010 (4,640,640)

Revenues and other sources over (under)
   expenditures and other uses Nil Nil 1,392,469 $1,392,469

Net change in fund balances 1,392,469

Fund balances - beginning 10,394,850

Fund balances - ending $11,787,319

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

2008

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF MORGANTON
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
 BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
     Interest earned $173,937 $173,937
       Total revenues 173,937 173,937

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
     Transfer from general fund $564,445 139,445 (425,000)
     Transfer to general fund (564,445) (325,000) 239,445
       Total other financing sources (uses) Nil Nil (185,555) (185,555)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures Nil (11,618) (11,618)

Net change in fund balances (11,618)

Fund balances - beginning 3,557,711

Fund balances - ending $3,546,093

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts

BUDGET AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

2008

Exhibit 7
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Governmental
Community Totals Activities - 

Water Wastewater Electric Cable House June 30, Internal 
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2008 Service Fund
CURRENT ASSETS :
   Cash and cash equivalents $135,117 $279,840 $423,341 838,298 $845,530
   Investments 5,864,271 1,323,485 8,827,399 16,015,155
   Accounts receivable (net) 347,573 416,051 2,504,886 296,413 3,564,923 814
   Interest receivable 49,643 22,698 75,006 147,347
   Inventories 900,107
   Due from other funds 3,253,380 3,253,380
   Restricted Cash 995 10,864 11,859
        Total current assets 6,397,599 2,052,938 15,084,012 296,413 23,830,962 1,746,451
NONCURRENT ASSETS :
Notes receivable 20,447 20,447
Capital assets (net) 16,846,382 25,399,500 10,391,739 6,458,795 214,330 59,310,746 468,386
        Total noncurrent assets 16,846,382 25,419,947 10,391,739 6,458,795 214,330 59,331,193 468,386

TOTAL ASSETS 23,243,981 27,472,885 25,475,751 6,755,208 214,330 83,162,155 2,214,837

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES :
   Accounts payable and 
      accrued liabilities 45,070 40,197 2,476,175 168,703 14,714 2,744,859 28,601
   Due to other funds 2,932,388 320,992 3,253,380
   Customer deposits 60,688 36,803 329,062 11,200 437,753
   Bonds payable - current 
      maturities 286,650 1,078,350 1,365,000
   Installment purchase -
      current maturities 131,835 48,761 1,046,428 1,227,024
   Matured bonds payable 995 10,864 11,859
        Total current liabilities 525,238 1,214,975 2,805,237 4,158,719 335,706 9,039,875 28,601
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES :
   Accrued vacation pay 45,572 67,752 70,656 15,342 5,924 205,246 36,732
   Bonds payable - noncurrent 1,332,608 5,013,155 6,345,763
   Installment purchase -
      noncurrent maturities 428,256 158,396 1,569,643 2,156,295
      Total noncurrent liabilities 1,806,436 5,239,303 70,656 1,584,985 5,924 8,707,304 36,732
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,331,674 6,454,278 2,875,893 5,743,704 341,630 17,747,179 65,333

NET ASSETS
   Invested in capital assets,
      net of related debt 14,666,038 19,089,974 10,391,739 3,842,724 214,330 48,204,805 468,386
   Unrestricted 6,246,269 1,928,633 12,208,119 (2,831,220) (341,630) 17,210,171 1,681,118

TOTAL NET ASSETS $20,912,307 $21,018,607 $22,599,858 $1,011,504 ($127,300) 65,414,976 $2,149,504

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 8
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Governmental
Community Totals Activities - 

Water Wastewater Electric Cable House June 30, Internal 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2008 Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES :
    Charges for services $4,011,287 $4,138,754 $23,422,320 $3,496,493 $223,929 $35,292,783 $2,009,712

OPERATING EXPENSES :
   Water treatment and
       maintenance 2,870,075 2,870,075
   Wastewater treatment and
       maintenance 3,213,114 3,213,114
   Operations and construction 25,885,108 25,885,108
   Operations and maintenance 2,878,104 2,878,104
   Community House operations 300,781 300,781
   MIS, Garage and Warehouse 
       operations 1,794,428
   Depreciation 633,107 541,793 620,103 1,054,493 11,853 2,861,349 94,908

Total 3,503,182 3,754,907 26,505,211 3,932,597 312,634 38,008,531 1,889,336

OPERATING INCOME  (LOSS) 508,105 383,847 (3,082,891) (436,104) (88,705) (2,715,748) 120,376
 
NONOPERATING REVENUES
   (EXPENSES) :
   Interest on investments 257,610 106,728 451,184 815,522
   Private contributions 21,734 21,734
   Interest expense (83,179) (83,179)
   Sale of materials 7,121
   Interest on bonds (115,439) (261,386) (376,825)
   Amortization of deferred 
      charge on refundings (16,248) (61,125) (77,373)
   Miscellaneous 42,081 11,021 29,962 157,124 240,188

Total 168,004 (204,762) 481,146 73,945 21,734 540,067 7,121

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
   TRANSFERS 676,109 179,085 (2,601,745) (362,159) (66,971) (2,175,681) 127,497

TRANSFERS :
   In 193,434 87,456 150,000 91,700 522,590
   Out (320,890) (787,495) (1,108,385)

Total (320,890) 193,434 (700,039) 150,000 91,700 (585,795)

Change in net assets 355,219 372,519 (3,301,784) (212,159) 24,729 (2,761,476) 127,497

TOTAL NET ASSETS - 
   beginning 20,557,088 20,646,088 25,901,642 1,223,663 (152,029) 2,022,007

TOTAL NET ASSETS - 
   ending $20,912,307 $21,018,607 $22,599,858 $1,011,504 ($127,300) $2,149,504

Change in net assets of business-type activities (2,761,476)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Community Totals Activities - 

Water Wastewater Electric Cable House June 30, Internal 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2008 Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM 
  OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
      Receipts from customers $4,011,287 $4,138,754 $23,422,320 $3,496,493 $223,929 $35,292,783 $2,009,712
      Payments to suppliers (1,816,758) (2,130,140) (24,259,329) (2,431,635) (170,290) (30,808,152) (1,256,817)
      Payments to employees (979,540) (1,055,970) (1,333,927) (420,577) (128,604) (3,918,618) (562,456)
                Net cash provided 
                 (used) by operating
                 activities 1,214,989 952,644 (2,170,936) 644,281 (74,965) 566,013 190,439

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
    Transfers - in 193,434 87,456 150,000 91,700 522,590
    Transfers - (out) (320,890) (787,495) (1,108,385)
    Interfund borrowings (173,840) 178,203 (4,363)
    Noncapital contributions   
       received (used) 42,081 11,021 29,962 157,124 21,734 261,922 7,121
                Net cash provided 
                 (used) by noncapital
                 financing activities (278,809) 204,455 (843,917) 485,327 109,071 (323,873) 7,121

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL 
   AND RELATED FINANCING
   ACTIVITIES:
      Acquisition and construction 
         of capital assets (694,299) (403,609) (531,342) (34,106) (1,663,356) ($25,895)
      Principal paid on capital debt (517,988) (957,801) (1,046,429) (2,522,218)
      Interest paid on capital debt (115,439) (261,386) (83,179) (460,004)
                Net cash provided (used)
                 by capital and related 
                  financing activities (1,327,726) (1,622,796) (531,342) (1,129,608) (34,106) (4,645,578) (25,895)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
  ACTIVITIES :
      Proceeds from sales and 
        maturities of investments 3,641,452 1,066,723 10,928,378 15,636,553
      Purchases of investments (5,864,271) (1,323,485) (8,827,399) (16,015,155)
      Interest on investments 280,645 114,016 541,664 936,325
                Net cash provided (used) 
                 by investing activities (1,942,174) (142,746) 2,642,643 557,723

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
    IN CASH AND CASH
    EQUIVALENTS (2,333,720) (608,443) (903,552) Nil Nil (3,845,715) 171,665

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

   AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,469,832 899,147 1,326,893 Nil Nil 4,695,872 673,865

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

   AT END OF YEAR $136,112 $290,704 $423,341 Nil Nil 850,157 $845,530

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Governmental
Community Totals Activities - 

Water Wastewater Electric Cable House June 30, Internal 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2008 Service Fund

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
      Operating income (loss) $508,105 $383,847 ($3,082,891) ($436,104) ($88,705) ($2,715,748) $120,376
      Adjustments to reconcile 
        operating income (loss)
        to net cash provided (used)
        by operating activities :
          Depreciation 633,107 541,793 620,103 1,054,493 11,853 2,861,349 94,908
          Changes in assets and 
            liabilities :
              (Increase) decrease in
               accounts receivable 56,357 61,868 (23,632) 35,302 129,895 (648)
              (Increase) decrease in
               inventories 608
             Increase (decrease) in
               accounts payable and
               accrued liabilities 2,466 (39,880) 301,589 (8,587) 2,333 257,921 (27,089)
             Increase (decrease) in
               customer deposits 9,681 1,737 4,701 (600) 15,519
             Increase (decrease) in
               accrued vacation pay 5,273 3,279 9,194 (223) (446) 17,077 2,284

                Net cash provided 
                 (used) by operating
                 activities $1,214,989 $952,644 ($2,170,936) $644,281 ($74,965) $566,013 $190,439

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
      Decrease in fair value of 
        investments (6,040) (2,951) (10,133) (19,124)
      Amortization of deferred
        charges on refunding (16,248) (61,125) (77,373)
Total noncash investing, capital
  and financing activities ($22,288) ($64,076) ($10,133) ($96,497)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

CITY OF MORGANTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
                                
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

The accounting policies of the City of Morganton and its discretely presented component unit 
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments.  The following is 
a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

 
A. Reporting entity  
 

The City of Morganton is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and four-member 
council.  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 
present the City and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable.  Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial statements (see note below for description) to emphasize 
that it is legally separate from the City. 

 
City of Morganton ABC Board 

 
The City appoints the members of the ABC Board’s governing board.  In addition, the ABC Board is 
required by State statute to distribute its surpluses to the General Fund of the City.  The ABC 
Board, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were an enterprise fund type.  Complete 
financial statements for the ABC Board may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices at 
City of Morganton ABC Board, 228 W. Fleming Drive, Morganton, NC 28655. 

 
City of Morganton Redevelopment Commission 

 
The members of the Redevelopment Commission are appointed by the City Council.  The purpose 
of the Commission is to revitalize blighted areas in the City, as designated.  The City has the ability 
to impose its will on the commission by removing appointed board members or management at will. 
 Also, the commission may not secure lending arrangements without the City's intervention; 
therefore, the commission is reported as a discrete component unit and is presented as a general 
governmental fund. The commission has a June 30 year-end.  Complete financial statements may 
be obtained at 305 E. Union Street, Morganton, NC  28655. 
 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in net assets) report information on all of the primary government and its component units. 
 Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
                                
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers 
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and proprietary funds.  Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 
 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 
 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the 
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period.  For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded 
only when payment is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds.   

 
Franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the government 
receives cash.     
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 

 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Ad valorem tax receivable is not accrued as revenue because the amount is not susceptible to 
accrual.  At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an 
available resource to finance the operations of the current year.  Also, as of January 1, 1993, State 
law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor 
vehicles in North Carolina.  Effective with this change in the law, Burke County is responsible for 
billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities 
and special tax districts in the County, including the City of Morganton.  For motor vehicles 
registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after 
the vehicles are registered.  The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become 
due.   
 
Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Burke County from March 2007 through 
February 2008 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.  Uncollected taxes, which were billed 
during this period, are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by 
deferred revenues.   
 
Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as 
revenue.  Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual 
because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.  Grant revenues, which are 
unearned at year-end, are recorded as deferred revenues. 
 
As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply only 
applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued before November 30, 1989 in its 
accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary operations. 

 
 The government reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  The primary 
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and State-shared revenues.  The primary expenditures are 
for public safety, streets and highways, sanitation, parks and recreation and general government 
services. 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  The City has two special revenue funds, 
those being the CDBG Entitlement Fund and the Capital Reserve Fund.   

 
The CDBG Entitlement Fund accounts for federal funds used to benefit low and moderate-income 
individuals.  The Capital Reserve Fund is used to record funds received from the sale of property to 
the State of North Carolina.  
 
The permanent fund is used to account for transactions related to the City Cemetery. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
                                
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The water fund is used to account for the City’s water operation. 
 
The wastewater fund is used to account for the City’s wastewater operation. 
 
The electric fund is used to account for the City’s electric distribution operation. 
 
The cable fund is used to account for the City’s cable operation. 

 
The community house fund is used to account for the community house operation. 
 
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 
 
The internal service fund accounts for the warehouse, central garage and management information 
systems functions.  Services are provided to City departments by this fund. 

 
D. Budgetary data 
 

As required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act (G.S. 159, Article 3), the 
governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual balanced budget ordinance for all funds except for 
those funds which operate under project ordinances.  The City has adopted project ordinances for 
the CDBG Entitlement Fund.  The annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting to be compatible with the accounting system in recording transactions, as required by 
G.S. 159-26(c). 

  
Appropriations are made at the departmental level and are amended as necessary by the 
governing board.  All appropriations (other than funds with multiyear budgets) lapse at year-end.  
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually 
budgeted funds and at the object level for project ordinances.  The City Manager is authorized to 
transfer appropriations within a fund; however the governing board must approve any revisions that 
alter total expenditures of any fund.  Both the original and the amended budget ordinances as of 
June 30, 2008 are included in the financial statements. 

 
E. Assets, liabilities, and fund equity 
 

Deposits and investments 
 

All deposits of the City, the ABC Board and the Redevelopment Commission are made in board-
designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31.  Official depositories 
may be established with any bank or savings and loan association whose principal office is located 
in North Carolina.  Also, the City and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as 
NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 
                                
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

State law (G.S. 159-39(c)) authorizes the City, the ABC Board and the Redevelopment Commission to 
invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest 
by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina 
local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain 
high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust (NCCMT). 
 
The City, the ABC Board and the Redevelopment Commission’s investments with a maturity of one 
year at acquisition and non-money market investments are reported at fair value as determined by 
quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money 
market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price.  Money market 
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at 
amortized cost.  Non-participating interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost. 

 
In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities, which are callable, and which provide 
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity.  These investments are stated 
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents.  The City, the ABC Board and the Redevelopment Commission 
consider all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less 
when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 

 
Ad valorem taxes receivable 

 
In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)), the City levies ad valorem taxes on 
July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year.  The taxes are due on September 1; however, interest does not 
accrue until the following January 6 (the lien date).  These taxes are based on the assessed values as 
of January 1, 2007.  As allowed by State law, the City has established a schedule of discounts that 
apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due date.  In the City's General Fund, ad valorem tax 
revenues are reported net of such discounts. 

 
Allowances for doubtful accounts 

 
Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained on all types of receivables, which historically 
experience uncollectible accounts. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
                                
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Inventories 
 

The internal service fund maintains all inventories unless it has been charged out to enterprise fund 
trucks.  All inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market.  Governmental fund type 
inventories are charged to expenditures when purchased.  The ABC Board values inventory at the 
lower of FIFO cost or market.  The Redevelopment Commission maintains no inventory. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the 
items are used. 

 
Capital assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Purchased or constructed capital 
assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at 
estimated fair value at the donation date. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital 
assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. 

 
Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Assets            Years 
 Infrastructure  50 
 Buildings  30 
 Land Improvements 15 
 Vehicles  10 
 Equipment   5 

 
Property, plant and equipment of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a 
straight-line basis as follows: 
 
 Assets            Years 
 Buildings  35    
 Improvements  15 
 Equipment  5   
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CITY OF MORGANTON 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

 
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

The Morganton Redevelopment Commission has capital assets consisting of land only. 
 

Long-term obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of 
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance cost are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance’s are reported as other financing uses.  
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures. 
 
Compensated absences 

 
The vacation policy of the City and the ABC Board provides for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) 
days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned.  For the City’s 
government-wide and proprietary funds and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for 
compensated absences and the salary related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.   

 
Both the City and the ABC Board’s sick leave policy provide for an unlimited accumulation of 
earned sick leave.  Sick leave does not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of 
retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  
Since neither the City nor the ABC Board has any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it 
is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 
 
Net assets/fund balances 
 
Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted.  Restricted net assets represent 
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that 
cannot be appropriated or are legally segregated for a specific purpose.  Designations of fund 
balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 
 
I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
                                  

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)(16)] restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's 
budget to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus that sum of liabilities, 
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the 
close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year. 

 
The governmental fund types classify fund balance as follows: 

 
RESERVED  
 
Reserved by state statute - portion of fund balance not available for appropriation after remaining 
reserves not available for appropriation, such as reserves for encumbrances, have been 
segregated. This amount is usually comprised of receivables and due from other funds. 

 
Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance available for appropriation to pay for 
commitments related to unperformed contracts. 

 
Reserved for canteen operations - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but 
segregated for canteen operations.  It represents the balance of the total unexpended canteen 
funds. 

 
Reserved for streets - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally segregated for 
street expenditures.  It represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Bill funds. 
 
Reserved for drug enforcement - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but segregated 
for drug enforcement.  It represents the balance of total unexpended confiscated drug money. 

 
Reserved for local law enforcement - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but 
segregated for law enforcement.     
 
Reserved for dare programs - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but segregated for 
DARE programs. 

 
UNRESERVED 

 
Designated for capital improvement program - portion of total fund balance available for 
appropriation, which has been designated, for future capital improvements. 

 
Designated for permanent fund - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation, which has 
been designated, for cemetery maintenance. 

 
Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation, which is uncommitted at 
year-end.     
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
                                
 
II. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities 
 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and 
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of 
activities.  One element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital 
outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense."  The details of 
this $1,818,283 difference are as follows: 
 
  Capital outlay    $4,400,703 
  Depreciation expense   (2,582,420) 
 
  Net adjustment to net changes in fund balances - total  
  Governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets 
  of governmental activities          $1,818,283   
 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, 
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities."  The details of this $3,140,871 difference 
are as follows: 
 
Debt issuance               (3,593,669) 
Principal repayments: 
 Installment purchase/GO Bonds       412,798 
 HUD Loan           40,000 
 
Net adjustment to net changes in fund balances - total 
Governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of  
Governmental activities               $(3,140,871) 
   
 
Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds."  The details of this $180,028 difference are as follows: 
 
Compensated Absences and Pension Obligation             $165,955 
Accrued Interest        14,073 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 

 
III.  Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements (continued) 

 
Net adjustment to net changes in fund balances - total 
Governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of  
Governmental activities       $180,028 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states that revenues reported in the statement of activities 
that do not provide current resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund statements.  The 
details of this $18,664 are as follows: 

 
   Recording of tax receipts deferred in the fund statements     $18,664 
  Net adjustment to revenues       $18,664 
 

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The net revenue of certain activities of the 
internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.” 

 
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds to 
arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities  $127,497 
 

IV. Detail notes on all funds 
 
A. Assets 
 

Deposits  
 

All of the City's, the ABC Board's and the Redevelopment Commission's deposits are either insured 
or collateralized by using one of two methods.  Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that 
exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the 
City's, the ABC Board's or the Redevelopment Commission's agents in these units' names.  Under 
the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with 
securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State 
Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the City, the ABC Board and the Redevelopment 
Commission, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's, the ABC Board's and the 
Redevelopment Commission's agents in their names.  The amount of the pledged collateral is 
based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current 
balance for interest-bearing deposits.  Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the 
State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  The State 
Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Unit or the escrow agent.  Because of the 
inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City or the ABC Board or the 
Redevelopment Commission under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for 
undercollateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.  However, the State 
Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that 
collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 

 
IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 
 

At June 30, 2008, the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $21,934,731 and a bank balance of 
$22,672,011.  Of the bank balance, $100,000 was insured by federal depository insurance and 
$22,076,752 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution in an escrow 
account in the name of the State Treasurer under the Pooling method of collateralization.  The 
carrying amount of deposits for the ABC Board was $103,238 and the bank balance was 227,125.  
The bank balance was covered by an institution using the Pooling Method.  The carrying amount of 
deposits for the Redevelopment Commission was $144,667 and the bank balance was $144,667.  
All of the bank balance was covered by Federal depository insurance. 

 
 Investments  

At June 30, 2008 the City's investments were as follows: 
        

  Less Than   

Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months 6-12 Months 1-3 Years 

  

US Government Agencies $8,789,678  $8,789,678

NC Capital Management Trust -   

     Cash Portfolio 3,078,833 $3,078,833   

          Total: $11,868,511 $3,078,833  $8,789,678

 
Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising 
interest rates, the City’s investment policy sets forth the following guidelines as part of its 
investment strategy. 
  
 Percent of portfolio under 270 days  up to 50% 
 Percent of portfolio under 1 year   up to 75% 
 Percent of portfolio under 3 years  up to 100% 
 
The City’s purchases securities with staggered maturity dates to compliment its cash flow strategy. 
 
Credit Risk - The City’s credit risk policy is imbedded in its investment policy.  The City diversifies 
its investment portfolio to avoid incurring unreasonable risk inherent in over-investing in specific 
instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. 
 
Diversification by Instrument:  Percent of Portfolio  
US Treasuries                up to 100% 
US Government Agencies   up to 100% 
Bankers Acceptances/Commercial Paper  up to 40% 
Repurchase Agreements    up to 25% 
Certificates of Deposit – Commercial Banks up to 100% 
Certificates of Deposit – Savings Banks  up to 25% 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust  up to 50% 
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The investments in US Agencies are rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s 
Investors Service.  The City’s investment in the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Cash 
Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2005.  The City is 
authorized to invest in obligations of the US Government and agencies, and in high grade money 
market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statues 159-30 as amended.  

 
Concentration of Credit Risk – The City places the following limits on the percentage that the City 
may invest in any one issuer: 
 

Bankers Acceptances - No more than 25% of the total portfolio with any one institution. 
 

Commercial Paper – No more than 25% of the total portfolio with any one issuer. 
 
Repurchase Agreements – No more than 15% of the total portfolio with any one 
institution. 
 
Certificates of Deposit–Commercial Banks – No more than 50% of the total portfolio with 
one institution. 
 
Certificates of Deposit-Savings Banks – No more than 25% of the total portfolio with one 
institution. 
 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust – No more than 50% of the total portfolio. 
 

Receivables - allowance for doubtful accounts 
 

The amount presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the 
following allowance for doubtful accounts: 

  
 General Fund: 
   Allowance for uncollectible property taxes     $11,246   

Enterprise Funds: 
  Allowance for uncollectible charges      $164,000 
 Total         $275,246 
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 Capital assets 

 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows: 

 
Primary Government 
    Beginning      Ending 
    Balances Increases Decreases Balances 
Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land    $11, 232,335                                          $11,232,335 
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings   $18,831,921 $3,027,951              $21,859,872    
  Equipment    14,965,720     1,372,752     16,338,472       
Infrastructure     44,242,623      44,242,623 
    Total capital assets  
     Being depreciated    78,040,264    4,400,703                  82,440,967 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings    12,823,103     500,142             13,323,245 
  Equipment     7,241,073          988,241       8,229,314 
 Infrastructure    27,169,054     1,094,037     28,263,091 
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation    47,233,230       $2,582,420        49,815,650 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net   30,807,034         1,818,283     32,625,317  
Governmental activity 
  Capital assets, net            $42,039,369       $1,818,283                   $43,857,652 
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Internal Service Fund: 
Capital assets not  
      being depreciated: 
  Land    $    33,318                $   33,318 
Capital assets being 
     depreciated: 
  Buildings                 621,212                         621,212 
  Equipment       620,851    25,894                 646,745 
        Total capital assets  
        being depreciated    1,242,063        25,894              1,267,957 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings              436,641        13,409                      450,050 
  Equipment           301,340           81,499                 382,839       
     Total accumulated 
       depreciation        737,981         94,908                           832,889 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net      504,082       (69,014)      435,068  
Internal Service Fund capital 

    assets, net  $   537,400  $(69,014)    $  468,386  
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 
 General Government   $249,744 
 Public Safety       397,211 
 Transportation              1,227,206 
 Environmental Protection    205,033 
 Culture and Recreational    503,226 
 Total depreciation expense       $2,582,420  

                              
    Beginning      Ending 
    Balances Increases Decreases Balances 
Business-type activities: 
Water Fund 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land    $   912,017                 $   912,017 
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings   10,143,543          10,143,543    
  Plant and System  16,692,645 $473,752          16,166,397 
  Equipment     1,414,280   224,205             1,638,485 
Total capital assets  
     being depreciated   27,250,468   697,957      27,948,425 
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Less accumulated 
   depreciation for: 
  Buildings    4,966,072      195,740            5,161,812  
  Plant and System   5,796,910      291,563     6,088,473 
  Equipment         617,971       145,804           763,775 
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation   11,380,953      633,107         12,014,060 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated,net  15,869,515       64,850    15,934,365  
Water Fund capital 
  assets, net  $16,781,532    $ 64,850              $16,846,382  
 
Wastewater Fund 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land   $14,067,068                $14,067,068 
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings      4,072,991           4,072,991    
  Plant and System    18,084,152  162,010                           18,246,162  
  Equipment       2,264,348      241,598                  2,505,946 
    Total capital assets  
     being depreciated   24,421,491  403,608           24,825,099 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings      2,349,924         76,023         2,425,947  
  Plant and System     9,126,942       291,168                             9,418,110 
  Equipment         1,474,008       174,602           1,648,610  
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation    12,950,874       541,793                           13,492,667 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated,net   11,470,617     (138,185)    11,332,432  
Wastewater Fund capital 
  assets, net  $25,537,685   $(138,185)  $25,399,500  
 
Electric Fund 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land         $55,950                       $55,950  
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings     2,731,417         2,731,417 
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Plant and System        13,618,378   416,492                 14,034,870 
Equipment           4,199,621   117,044                    4,316,665       
       Total capital assets  
          being depreciated        20,549,416   533,536              21,082,952 
Less accumulated 
     Depreciation for: 
Buildings                        1,387,750      65,041                          1,452,791 
Plant and System                     7,067,575    319,823                           7,387,398 
Equipment             1,671,735    235,239                          1,906,974 
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation        10,127,060    620,103                        10,747,163 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net      10,422,356   (86,567)   10,335,789  
Electric Fund capital 
  assets, net     $10,478,306   $(86,567)   10,391,739   
 
Cable Fund 
Capital assets not  
      being depreciated: 
 Land                                  5,586                                                 5,586 
    Total capital assets not 
      being depreciated              5,586                                                  5,586 
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings           793,076                   793,076    
  Plant and System     11,277,684         11,277,684 
  Equipment           369,774                                             369,774 
    Total capital assets  
     being depreciated     12,440,534                                 12,440,534 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings           291,080      24,702           315,782  
  Plant and System       4,368,160 1,002,823           5,370,983 
  Equipment              273,592      26,968                        300,560 
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation    4,932,832     1,054,493                            5,987,325 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net   7,507,702   (1,054,493)               6,453,209  
Cable Fund capital 
  assets, net    7,513,288 ($1,054,493)   6,458,795     
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Community House Fund 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land       $25,725                    $25,725 
Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings      410,920                         410,920 
  Equipment        10,050      34,106                44,156 
    Total capital assets  
     being depreciated     420,970      34,106                      455,076 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings         243,160     10,722                     253,882 
  Equipment          11,458          1,131                                12,589 
    Total accumulated 
     depreciation      254,618     11,853                               266,471 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net     166,352      22,253        188,605  
Community House Fund  

    Capital assets,net 192,077       $ 22,253        214,330  
 
 
 Business-type activities  
   capital assets, net      $60,502,888   $(1,192,142)           $59,310,746 
 
 

Depreciation expense in the amount of $2,861,349 was charged to business type activities. 
 

Construction commitments 
 

The City has no active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. 
 

 Discretely presented component units 
 

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows: 
        Beginning      Ending 
         Balances Increases Decreases Balances 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land      $    11,000                          $    11,000 
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Capital assets being 
   depreciated: 
  Buildings             77,980                          77,980 
  Improvements             90,652     60,501    151,153 
  Equipment             86,544     57,348       143,892 
    Total capital assets  
     being depreciated          255,176      117,849                373,025 
Less accumulated 
   Depreciation for: 
  Buildings                77,980                                               77,980 
  Improvements             80,086         6,905                             88,892  
  Equipment                78,246       14,740                     92,986                              

                Total accumulated 
        depreciation            238,213      21,645                            259,858 
 Total capital  
 assets being  
 depreciated, net          $16,963 $ 96,204                $113,167  
ABC Board capital 

    assets, net       $    27,963 $ 96,204         $ 124,167  
 
 

Activity for the Morganton Redevelopment Commission for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as 
follows: 
 
   Beginning      Ending 
   Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

 
Capital assets not  
   being depreciated: 
  Land   $1,081,695                 $(11,728)        $1,069,967 

 
B. Liabilities 
 

Pension plan obligations 
 

1.  Local Government Employees' Retirement System 
 

Plan Description - The City of Morganton and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS provides retirement and 
disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  The  
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Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State's CAFR includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS.  That report may be obtained by 
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 
27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.       
              
Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered 
salary.  The City and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.  
For the City, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law 
enforcement officers is 4.8% and 4.87%, respectively, of annual covered payroll.  For the ABC 
Board, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and law enforcement 
officers is 4.94% and 4.86% of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of members 
and of the City of Morganton and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by the 
North Carolina General Assembly.  The City's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 
2008, 2007 and 2006 were $540,430, $508,741, and $473,165, respectively.  The ABC Board's 
contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $8,666, $9,753, 
and $9,700, respectively.  The contributions made by the City and the ABC Board equaled the 
required contributions for each year. 

 
2.  Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance 

 
Plan Description - The City of Morganton administers a public employee retirement system (the 
"Separation Allowance"), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement 
benefits to the City's qualified sworn law enforcement officers.  The Separation Allowance is equal 
to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to 
the officer for each year of creditable service.  The retirement benefits are not subject to any 
increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly.  
Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to 
the North Carolina General Assembly. 
 
All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance.  At 
December 31, 2007, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

 
             Retirees receiving benefits             17     
                     Terminated plan members entitled 
                        to but not yet receiving benefits      0   
                     Active plan members                      63    
                          Total                                  80    
 
 As the plan is not funded, A separate report was not issued.         
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 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - 
 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you 
go basis.  Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.   

 
METHOD USED TO VALUE INVESTMENTS - No funds are set aside to pay benefits and 
administration costs.  These expenditures are paid as they come due. 

 
Contributions - The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement 
benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through 
appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget.  The City's obligation to contribute to 
this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.  There were 
no contributions made by employees. 

 
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 
2006 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) 
projected salary increases of 4.5% to 12.3% per year.  Both (a) and (b) included an inflation 
component of 3.75%.  The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases.  The 
actuarial value of assets was market value.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being  
amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis.  The remaining amortization period at 
December 31, 2007 was 23 years. 

 
ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION OBLIGATION - The City's annual pension cost 
and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows: 

 
         Annual required contribution                        $ 141,689     
                Interest on net pension obligation                                1,310     
                Adjustment to annual required contribution                (1,111)  
                Annual pension cost                                                 141,888    
                Contributions made for fiscal year ended           
                    6-30-08                                                           -  
                Increase (decrease) in net pension                       141,888 
                   obligation 
        Net pension obligation beginning of year                18,075  
                Net pension obligation end of year                 $ 159,963 

 
3 YEAR TREND INFORMATION 

               Fiscal       Annual Pension      Percentage of      Net Pension 
             Year Ended       Cost (APC)       APC Contributed      Obligation 

      6/30/06       $139,864             133.18%           $ 81,567   
      6/30/07       $129,291             147.58%           $ 20,044   

 6/30/08       $141,888              -                 $159,963   
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3.  Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 
 
Plan Description - The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a 
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board 
of Trustees.  The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the 
City.  Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions 
to the North Carolina General Assembly. 

 
Funding Policy - Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an 
amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested 
immediately.  Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.  
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 were $240,583, which consisted of $132,444 from 
the City and $108,139 from the law enforcement officers. 

 
Deferred Compensation Plan 

 
The City offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457.  The Plans are administered by Pebsco Securities Corp. and the 
International City Management Association, respectively.  The Plans, available to all City 
employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.   

 
The City has complied with changes in the laws which govern the City's Deferred Compensation 
Plan, requiring all assets of the plan to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants 
and their beneficiaries.  Formerly, the undistributed amounts, which had been deferred by the plan 
participants, were required to be reported as assets of the City.  In accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 32, the City’s deferred compensation plan is no longer reported within the City’s 
agency funds. 

 
Post-Employment Health Care Benefits 

 
Per a 1998 City Council approved policy; the City will pay for basic medical insurance for all retirees 
that qualify based on years of service.  The City's contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go 
basis.  The policy provides for termination of this benefit upon thirty days notice.  As of year-end, 
there were 72 retirees receiving insurance benefits.   
 
The following schedule became effective July 1, 1997: 

 
 
             Years of service with the           % of Retiree Health 
                 City of Morganton             Insurance the City Pays 
 
             20 or more years of service                 100% 
             10 to 19.99 years of service                  50% 
             5 to 9.99 years of service                        0% 
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 Disability retirement                       100% 
 

The City's contribution will cease when the retiree reaches age 65. 
 

Deferred/Unearned Revenue 
 

The balance in deferred revenues in the fund financial statements and unearned revenues in the 
government-wide statements, at June 30, 2007 is composed of the following elements: 

                                                        Deferred Unearned  
             Taxes Receivable (Net)         $114,562 
   Auditorium advance ticket sales                  74,845      74,845 
   Prepaid taxes           6,314                  6,314      
    Total deferred revenue                 $195,721         $81,159 

 
Risk Management 

 
The City and the ABC Board are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage 
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
The City participates in three self-funded risk financing pools administered by the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities.  Through these pools, the City obtains general liability and auto liability 
coverage of $1 million per occurrence, property coverage up to the total insurance values of the 
property policy, and workers' compensation coverage up to statutory limits.  

 
The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single occurrence claims against 
general liability, auto liability and property liability in excess of $500,000 and $300,000 statutory 
limits for workers' compensation.  The property liability pool has an aggregate limit for the total 
property losses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit based upon a percentage of the total 
insurance values.  The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have 
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
With the recent occurrences of flooding in various parts of North Carolina, flood risk management is 
a concern. To mitigate this concern the City of Morganton has obtained flood insurance coverage.  
 
In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any 
given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.  The 
finance officer and tax collector are each individually bonded for $50,000 each. 
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The City of Morganton and ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, and natural disasters.  The ABC Board 
has property, general liability, auto liability, workers' compensation, and employee health 
coverages.  The ABC Board also has liquor legal liability coverage.  Claims have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years and there has been no significant reduction in 
insurance coverage in the prior year. 
 

  
Long-Term Obligations 

 
The City’s general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued to finance the 
construction of facilities utilized in the operations of the water and wastewater systems and which 
are being retired by its resources are reported as long-term debt in the Water and Wastewater 
Funds.  All installment purchase notes payable issued are being retired by their resources and are 
reported as long-term debt in the Cable and General Funds.  All bonds are collateralized by the 
faith, credit, and taxing power of the City.  Principal and interest requirements are appropriated 
when due. 

 
 

Installment Purchase Obligations 
 

In April 2006, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance the purchase of ten 
Public Safety Vehicles.  The agreement was to borrow $306,300 for 3 years at an interest rate of 
3.43%.   

 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $2,273 of 
interest, are as follows: 

 
     Governmental Activities                   
Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009     105,596    2,273 
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments    $105,596   
Total interest payments      $2,273 

 
In April 2006, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance the purchase of a 
fire truck.  The agreement was to borrow $334,877 for 7 years at an interest rate of 3.47%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



-54- 
 
 

CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
      
 

IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 
 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $20,506 
of interest, are as follows: 
 
     Governmental Activities                   
Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009      50,918    7,782  
 2010      52,708    5,992    
 2011      54,561    4,139  
 2012      56,479    2,221  
 2013      28,560       372 
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments              $243,226   
Total interest payments               $ 20,506 

 
In November 2007, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance the purchase 
of the City Hall Building.  The agreement was to borrow $3,339,700 for 16 years at an interest rate 
of 3.93%.   

 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $951,564 
of interest, are as follows: 

 
     Governmental Activities                   
Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009      222,647 124,688  
 2010      222,647 115,938    
 2011      222,647 107,188  
 2012      222,647   98,438  
 2013      222,647   89,688    
 2014-2018    1,113,235  317,188 
 2019-2023    1,001,907   98,436 
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments    $3,228,377   
Total interest payments              $951,564 

 
In July 2008, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance the purchase of 
Public Safety vehicles. $253,960 was borrowed for 3 years at an interest rate of 3.225%.    

 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $16,331 
of interest, are as follows: 
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     Governmental Activities                   
Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009       80,122   9,975  
 2010       85,525   4,572  
 2011       88,313   1,784 
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments     $253,960   
Total interest payments               $16,331 

 
In July 2004, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance the rebuild of its 
cable system. $7,325,000 was borrowed for seven years at an interest rate of 2.45%.    

 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $96,141 
of interest, are as follows: 

  
 Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009    1,046,429  57,684  
 2010    1,046,429  32,047  
 2011       523,213   6,410 
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments              $2,616,071   
Total interest payments                $96,141 

 
In April 2006, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to provide a new bleaching 
system for the water and sewer plants. $922,437 was borrowed for five years at an interest rate of 
3.97%.    

 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2008, including $66,352 
of interest, are as follows: 

  
 Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest 
 2009      180,595  27,805 
 2010      187,876  20,524 
 2011      195,449   12,951 
 2012      203,328             5,072      
Present value of the minimum  
 Lease payments                            $767,248   

 Total interest payments               $66,352 
 

 Notes payable    Business-type Activities 
 
 HUD Section 108 Loan/Note Payable                  $55,000 
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 General obligation bonds 
 

The City’s general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for costs 
connected with the City’s Municipal Auditorium.  Those general obligation bonds issued to finance 
the construction of facilities utilized in the operations of the water and sewer systems and which are 
being retired by their resources are reported as long-term debt in the Water and Sewer Funds.  All 
general obligation bonds are collaterized by the full faith, and credit, and taxing power of the City.  
Principal and interest requirements are appropriated when due. 
 
Bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following individual issues: 

      
$11,995,000, 2003 water and sewer refunding bonds due in annual installments ranging from 
$425,000 to $1,365,000 through June 1, 2015; interest at 2.0% to 4.0%.  The amount of $7,710,763 
is net of the amortized deferred loss on the defeasance of $464,237.    

 
 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 
 
 
 Year Ending Business-type Activities 
 June 30 Principal Interest  
 2009 1,365,000    279,019 
 2010 1,335,000    238,069 
 2011 1,305,000    198,019 
 2012 1,275,000    157,237 
 2013 1,245,000    115,800 
 2014 1,225,000      66,000 
 2015    425,000      17,000       
 Total        $8,175,000      $1,071,744        

 
Debt Margin 

 At June 30, 2008, the City of Morganton had a legal debt margin of  $139,362,012. 
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IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 

 
Changes in long-term liabilities 
 

     Current 

 Balance   Balance Portion of  

 June 30, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008 Balance 

Governmental activities: 

Installment purchase $600,888 $3,593,669 $363,398 $3,831,159 $459,283

General obligation bonds 49,400 49,400

Compensated absences 721,933 384,250 355,930 750,253 337,614

Net pension obligation 20,044 139,919 159,963

HUD Loan (notes payable) 95,000 40,000 55,000 40,000 

  Governmental activity  

   Long-term liabilities $1,487,265 $4,117,838 $808,728 $4,796,375 $836,897

 

Business-type activities: 

General obligation bonds $9,495,600 $1,320,600 $8,175,000 $1,365,000 

  Less deferred amount 

  For loss on defeasance 541,610 77,373 464,237 77,373

Net 8,953,990 1,243,227 7,710,763 1,287,627

Installment purchase 4,584,937 1,201,618 3,383,319 1,227,024

Compensated absences 188,169 155,400 138,323 205,246 205,246

  Business-type activity  

   Long-term liabilities $13,727,096 $155,400 $2,583,168 $11,299,328 $2,719,897

 
 
Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds.  Accordingly, long-term 
liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities.  At year-end 
$36,732 of internal service funds compensated absences are included in the above amounts.  Also, 
for governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. 
 
The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding 
for the Morganton Redevelopment Commission: 
 

                                         Principal     Interest        
 
            2008                         $ 134,989     $      -     
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IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 
 

C. Interfund Balances (Due to/Due from) and Activity 
 

Interfund receivables and payables (due to’s and due from’s) in the fund financial statements at 
June 30, 2008 are composed as follows:                                   
            Receivables     Payables 

            Electric fund - receivable from 
             Cable fund        $2,932,388 
  Electric fund - receivable from 
   Community House fund                    320,992 
  Cable fund - payable to Electric fund    $2,932,388 
  Community House fund - payable to 
             Electric Fund                                                  320,992  
                 Total interfund receivables  
                  and payables                             $3,253,380    $3,253,380    
 

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from working capital loans made to other 
funds which are expected to be reimbursed in the subsequent year.  

                  
Transfers are used for various reasons.  In the year ended June 30, 2008 transfers were used to: 

 Subsidize the general fund to forestall a significant property tax increase: 
 Move funds from capital reserve to the general fund to allow appropriation 
 Reimburse inter-departmental costs shared by more than one enterprise 

 
A summary of interfund transfers by fund for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows: 
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IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 

 
 Transfers  Transfers 
 From  To 
General Fund :    
   From Electric Fund $637,495   
   From Water Fund 40,000   
   From Capital Reserve  Fund     185,555   
   To Community House Fund    91,700 
    
          Total 863,050  91,700 
    
Capital Reserve Fund:    
   To General Fund      185,555
   
          Total      185,555
    
Water Fund :    
   To Electric Fund   87,456 
   To General Fund   40,000 
   To Wastewater Fund    193,434 
    
          Total    320,890 
    
Wastewater Fund :    
   From Water Fund 193,434    
    
          Total 193,434    
    
Cable Fund :    
   From Electric Fund 150,000    
    
          Total 150,000    
    
Community House Fund :    
   From General Fund 91,700    
    
          Total 91,700    
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CITY OF MORGANTON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 
 
 
IV. Detail notes on all funds (continued) 
 
Electric Fund :    
   From Water Fund 87,456   
   To General Fund   637,495 
   To Cable Fund    150,000 
    
          Total 87,456  787,495 
    
          Grand Totals $1,385,640  $1,385,640 

 
V.   Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies: 

 
Federal and State Assisted Programs 
 
The City has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of 
these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate 
expenditures under the grant agreements. 
 
Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies.  
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has 
been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 
 

I. Jointly Governed Organization 
  
The City, in conjunction with twenty other local governments, is a member of the North 
Carolina Municipal Power Agency #1 (Agency).  The Agency was formed to enable 
municipalities that own electric distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, 
and maintain generation and transmission facilities.  Each participating government 
appoints one commissioner to the Agency's governing board.  The twenty-one members, 
who receive power from the Agency, have signed power sales agreements to purchase a 
specified share of the power generated by the Agency.  Except for the power sales 
purchase requirements, no local government participant has any obligation, entitlement, 
or residual interest. The City's purchases of power for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 
were $21,177,932. 
 
The City, in conjunction with twenty-six other local governments, established the Western 
Piedmont Council of Governments (WPCOG).  The participating governments established 
the WPCOG to coordinate various funding received from federal and state agencies.  
Each participating government appoints one member to the WPCOG'S governing board.  
The City paid membership fees of $24,081 to WPCOG during the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2008.   
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JUNE 30, 2008 
 
 
V.   Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies (con’t): 

      
II. Joint Ventures: 
 
The City, in conjunction with the City of Lenoir, Burke County and Caldwell County, 
participates in a regional airport.  Each participating government appoints members to the 
board.  The Airport is a joint venture established to facilitate economic expansion within the 
area and improve the quality of life for its citizens.  The Airport has been in existence for 
fifty years, but it is not self-sustaining.  The City has an ongoing financial responsibility for 
the Airport because it and the County are legally obligated under the intergovernmental 
agreement that created the Airport to honor any deficiencies in the event that proceeds 
from other default remedies are insufficient.  The City contributed $50,470 to the Airport 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.  The participating governments do not have 
any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the 
financial statements at June 30, 2008.  Complete financial statements for the Airport can be 
obtained from the Airport's administrative offices at 305 East Union Street, City of 
Morganton, NC.  28655. 

 
III. Related Organization 

 
The mayor of the City of Morganton appoints the five-member board of   the City of Morganton 
Housing Authority.  The City is accountable for the Housing Authority because it appoints the 
governing board; however, the City is not financially accountable for the Housing Authority.  The 
City makes no financial contributions to the Authority.  The City of Morganton is also disclosed as 
a related organization in the notes to the financial statements for the City of Morganton Housing 
Authority. 
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CITY OF MORGANTON 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
 
  
                                 Actuarial                                             
                                Accrued                                               
                                 Liability                                               
                                  (AAL)                                                 
            Actuarial   Projected   Unfunded                                      UAAL as a   
Actuarial  Value of        Unit            AAL             Funded     Covered      % of Covered 
Valuation   Assets      Credit         (UAAL)           Ratio          Payroll           Payroll 
  Date          (a)                    (b)        (b - a)          (a / b)            (c)           (b - a) / c) 
12-31-07    $- 0 -  $1,556,859  $1,556,859    0.00%  $2,558,119    60.87% 
12-31-06     - 0 -    1,530,232   1,530,232    0.00%   2,853,281    53.63% 
12-31-05     - 0 -    1,370,938   1,370,938    0.00%   2,654,728    51.64%  
12-31-04     - 0 -    1,517,793   1,517,793    0.00%      2,484,357         61.09%  
12-31-03     - 0 -    1,480,131   1,480,131    0.00%      2,191,061         67.55%  
12-31-02     - 0 -    1,470,769   1,470,769    0.00%      2,339,997         62.85%   
12-31-01     - 0 -    1,531,574   1,531,574    0.00%      2,298,795         66.63% 
12-31-00     - 0 -    1,493,376   1,493,376    0.00%      2,324,590         64.24% 
 
 

CITY OF MORGANTON 
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
 
Year Ended        Annual Required         Percentage 
 June 30,                  Contribution          Contributed 
2006                 $    139,864             133.18% 
2007   129,291  147.58% 
2008   141,689      .000% 
 
Notes to the Required Schedules: 
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the 
actuarial valuations at the dates indicated.  Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation 
follows. 
 
        Valuation date                         12/31/07 
        Actuarial cost method                  Projected unit credit 
        Amortization method                    Level percent of pay  
        Remaining amortization period         23 years 
        Asset valuation method                 Market value 
        Actuarial assumptions: 
          Investment rate of return           7.25% 
          Projected salary increases           4.5% - 12.3% 
          Includes inflation at                3.75% 
          Cost-of-living adjustments           None 



Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date

REVENUES
     Restricted intergovernmental revenues -
        community development block grants $2,729,156 $2,328,961 $158,490 $2,487,451
     Program  income 7,006 42,015 31,014 73,029

Total revenues 2,736,162 2,370,976 189,504 2,560,480

EXPENDITURES
  Economic and physical development 
     Land acquisition 305,279 171,423 171,423
     Rehabilitation 525,117 525,117 525,117
     Construction 191,231 207,075 69,157 276,232
     Administration 425,742 398,872 25,511 424,383
     Credit counseling 32,253 32,253 32,253
     Deposit assistance 19,162 19,162 19,162
     Grant assistance 324,350 231,196 23,000 254,196
     Interest expense 127,609 111,026 5,411 116,437
     Small business loan 180,801 75,045 75,045
     Section 108 loan repayment 320,000 280,000 40,000 320,000

Total expenditures 2,451,544 2,051,169 163,079 2,214,248

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 284,618 319,807 26,425 346,232

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Loan proceeds - Section 108 375,000 375,000 375,000
  Transfers from general fund 3,439 3,439 3,439
  Transfer to component unit
     Redevelopment commission (663,057) (663,237) (663,237)

Total other financing sources (uses) (284,618) (284,798) ($284,798)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 
   and other financial uses Nil $35,009 $26,425 $61,434

Net change in fund balances $26,425

Fund balances - beginning 35,009

Fund balances - ending $61,434

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
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CITY OF MORGANTON
CDBG ENTITLEMENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 



Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES 
    Sales and services: 
        New cemetery lot sales $6,000 $6,000 $12,025 $6,025
        Cemetery lot marker service 700 700 1,006 306
 Total 6,700 6,700 13,031 6,331
    Investment earnings - interest
     earned 15,600 15,600 13,768 (1,832)

Total revenues 22,300 22,300 26,799 4,499

EXPENDITURES
    Cemetery improvements 22,300 22,300 22,300

Excess of revenues over expenditures Nil Nil 26,799 26,799

Net change in fund balances Nil 26,799 $26,799

Fund balances - beginning 363,816

Fund balances - ending $390,615

2008

Budgeted Amounts

BUDGET AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         Reimbursement for services $19,000 $6,927 ($12,073)
         Water rents 3,880,000 3,655,110 (224,890)
         Penalties 42,500 43,397 897
         Water taps 72,000 57,097 (14,903)
         Reconnect fees 7,000 5,140 (1,860)
         Rental income 103,000 243,616 140,616

Total 4,123,500 4,011,287 (112,213)

     Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) :
         Interest on investments 270,000 257,610 (12,390)
         Miscellaneous 30,403 42,081 11,678
         Interest expenditures (112,668) (115,439) (2,771)

Total 187,735 184,252 (3,483)

Total revenues 4,311,235 4,195,539 (115,696)

EXPENDITURES :
     Water treatment and maintenance :
         Salaries and employee benefits 979,540
         Operating expenditures 1,871,036

Total 3,140,739 2,850,576 290,163

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES (Continued) :
     Budgetary appropriations :
         Debt principal - bonds $1,377,540 $694,299 $683,241
         Capital outlay 517,986 517,988 ($2)

Total budgetary appropriations 1,895,526 1,212,287 683,239

Total expenditures 5,036,265 4,062,863 973,402

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (725,030) 132,676 857,706

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
     Appropriated retained earnings 545,920 (545,920)
     Installment purchase proceeds 500,000 (500,000)
     Operating transfers - in (out) :
         To Electric Fund (87,456) ($87,456)
         To General Fund (40,000) (40,000)
         To Wastewater Fund (193,434) (193,434)

Total other financing sources (uses) 725,030 (320,890) (1,045,920)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES Nil ($188,214) ($188,214)

WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CITY OF MORGANTON
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RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

      Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) 
         Expenditures and Other Uses ($188,214)

      Add :
            Cost of expenditures which were capitalized $694,299
            Payment of debt principal 517,988 1,212,287

      Less :
            Depreciation (633,107)
            Increase in accrued vacation pay (5,273)
            Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (16,248)
            Bad debts (14,226) (668,854)

Total Change in Net Assets 355,219

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 20,557,088

NET ASSETS - End of Year $20,912,307

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         Reimbursement for services $5,000 $600 ($4,400)
         Sewer rents 4,194,100 4,067,727 (126,373)
         Late payment penalties 45,000 43,456 (1,544)
         Sewer taps 17,000 9,451 (7,549)
         Septage revenue 11,000 12,775 1,775
         Sale of sludge 4,000 4,745 745

Total 4,276,100 4,138,754 (137,346)

     Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) :
         Interest earned 99,500 106,728 7,228
         Miscellaneous 27,500 11,021 (16,479)
         Interest expenditures (262,971) (261,386) 1,585

Total (135,971) (143,637) (7,666)

Total revenues 4,140,129 3,995,117 (145,012)

EXPENDITURES :
Wastewater treatment and maintenance :
         Salaries and employee benefits 1,055,970
         Operating expenditures 2,140,247

Total wastewater treatment 3,262,812 3,196,217 66,595
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WASTEWATER FUND

                SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES (Continued) :
     Budgetary appropriations :
         Debt principal - bonds $957,801 $957,801
         Capital outlay 1,578,971 403,609 $1,175,362

Total budgetary appropriations 2,536,772 1,361,410 1,175,362

Total expenditures 5,799,584 4,557,627 1,241,957

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,659,455) (562,510) 1,096,945

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
     Appropriated retained earnings 836,021 (836,021)
     Installment purchase proceeds 630,000 (630,000)
     Operating transfers - in (out) :
         From Water Fund 193,434 193,434

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,659,455 193,434 (1,466,021)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES Nil ($369,076) ($369,076)

                SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WASTEWATER FUND
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RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

      Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) 
         Expenditures and Other Uses ($369,076)

      Add :
            Cost of expenditures which were capitalized $403,609
            Payment of debt principal 957,801 1,361,410

      Less :
            Depreciation (541,793)
            Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (61,125)
            Increase in accrued vacation pay (3,278)
            Bad debts                         (13,619) (619,815)

Total Change in Net Assets 372,519

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 20,646,088

NET ASSETS - End of Year $21,018,607

`

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CITY OF MORGANTON
WASTEWATER FUND

                SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         Reimbursement for services $115,000 $81,829 ($33,171)
         Sale of current 6,375,000 6,260,032 (114,968)
         Sale of power 17,025,000 16,318,701 (706,299)
         Late payment penalties 265,000 268,846 3,846
         Security light rental 400,000 388,044 (11,956)
         Street lighting 75,000 74,000 (1,000)
         Reconnection fees 20,000 16,200 (3,800)
         Pole rental 35,000 14,668 (20,332)

Total 24,310,000 23,422,320 (887,680)

     Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) :
         Interest earned 824,000 451,184 (372,816)
         Cash over (short) 18 18
         Miscellaneous 17,000 29,944 12,944

Total 841,000 481,146 (359,854)

Total revenues 25,151,000 23,903,466 (1,247,534)

EXPENDITURES :
     Operations and construction :     
         Salaries and employee benefits 1,333,927
         Operating expenditures 2,324,836
         Purchases of power 22,140,711

Total 25,519,430 25,799,474 (280,044)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CITY OF MORGANTON
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ELECTRIC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES (Continued) :
     Budgetary appropriations :
         Capital outlay 1,898,408 531,342 1,367,066

Total budgetary appropriations 1,898,408 531,342 1,367,066

Total expenditures 27,417,838 26,330,816 1,087,022
 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,266,838) (2,427,350) (160,512)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
     Appropriated retained earnings 1,766,877 (1,766,877)
     Installment purchase proceeds 1,200,000 (1,200,000)
     Operating transfers - in (out) :
         To General Fund (637,495) (637,495)
         To Cable Fund (150,000) (150,000)
         From Water Fund 87,456 87,456

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,266,838 (700,039) (2,966,877)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES Nil ($3,127,389) ($3,127,389)

 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CITY OF MORGANTON
ELECTRIC FUND
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RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

      Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) 
         Expenditures and Other Uses ($3,127,389)

      Add :
            Cost of expenditures which were capitalized $531,342 531,342

      Less :
            Bad debts                         (76,440)
            Depreciation (620,103)
            Increase in accrued vacation payable (9,194) (705,737)

Total Change in Net Assets (3,301,784)

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 25,901,642

NET ASSETS - End of Year $22,599,858

ELECTRIC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CITY OF MORGANTON
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         Reimbursement for services $50,000 $21,060 ($28,940)
         Studio revenues 20 20
         Internet revenues 740,852 664,291 (76,561)
         Cable rents 3,067,104 2,811,122 (255,982)

Total 3,857,956 3,496,493 (361,463)

     Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) :
         Interest expenditures                   (83,322) (83,179) 143
         Penalties 47,000 42,925 (4,075)
         Reconnect fees 15,000 14,745 (255)
         Ad sales 162,000 71,008 (90,992)
         Bad check charges 2,500 1,316 (1,184)
         Franchise tax 145,195 568 (144,627)
         Miscellaneous revenue 35,000 26,562 (8,438)

Total 323,373 73,945 (249,428)

Total revenues 4,181,329 3,570,438 (610,891)

EXPENDITURES :
     Cable operations and maintenance :
         Salaries and employee benefits 420,577
         Operating expenditures 2,380,834

Total cable operations and 
   maintenance 3,381,138 2,801,411 579,727

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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CITY OF MORGANTON
CABLE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS



2008

Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES (Continued) :
     Budgetary appropriations :
         Appropriated Retained Earnings ($96,238) (96,238)
         Debt principal - installment purchase  
            notes 1,046,429 $1,046,429

Total budgetary appropriations 950,191 1,046,429 (96,238)

Total expenditures 4,331,329 3,847,840 $483,489

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (150,000) (277,402) (127,402)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
     Operating transfer in - Electric Fund 150,000 150,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 150,000 150,000

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES Nil ($127,402) ($127,402)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

      Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) 
         Expenditures and Other Uses ($127,402)

      Add :
            Decrease in accrued vacation payable 222
            Payment of debt principal 1,046,429 1,046,651

      Less :
            Depreciation (1,054,493)
            Bad debts (76,915) (1,131,408)

Total Change in Net Assets (212,159)

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 1,223,663

NET ASSETS - End of Year $1,011,504

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CABLE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

CITY OF MORGANTON
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         Food sales and room rent $243,000 223,929 (19,071)

     Nonoperating revenues :
         Fund Raising 10,000 947 (9,053)
         Contribution - Cobb estate 20,000 20,787 787

Total 30,000 21,734 (8,266)

Total revenues 273,000 245,663 (27,337)

EXPENDITURES :
     Community House operations :
         Salaries and employee benefits 128,604
         Operating expenditures 172,622

Total operations 309,700 301,226 8,474

    Budgetary appropriations :   
         Capital outlay 55,000 34,106 20,894

Total expenditures 364,700 335,332 29,368

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ($91,700) ($89,669) $2,031

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
     Operating transfers - in (out) :
         From General Fund 91,700 91,700

Total other financing sources (uses) 91,700 91,700

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES Nil $2,031 $2,031

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

      Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) 
         Expenditures and Other Uses $2,031

      Add :
            Cost of expenditures which were capitalized $34,106
            Decrease in accrued vacation pay 445 $34,551

      Less :
            Depreciation (11,853) (11,853)

Total Change in Net Assets 24,729

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year (152,029)

NET ASSETS - End of Year ($127,300)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES :
     Operating revenues :
         IRMS :
             General Fund 569,085 569,085
             Electric Fund 81,954 81,954
             Water Fund 62,551 62,551
             Wastewater Fund 45,699 45,699
             Cable Fund 47,049 47,049
             Community House Fund 3,590 3,590
             Warehouse/Garage 4,603 4,603

Total 814,531 814,531

         Warehouse :
             General Fund sales 225,080 38,973 (186,107)
             Electric Fund sales 189,020 345,532 156,512
             Water Fund sales 72,700 97,690 24,990
             Wastewater Fund sales 36,350 8,523 (27,827)
             Cable Fund sales 36,350 26,589 (9,761)
             Garage Fund sales 17,824 17,824

Total 577,324 535,131 (42,193)

         Garage :
             General Fund sales 142,181 148,915 6,734
             Electric Fund sales 17,000 14,177 (2,823)
             Water Fund sales 17,000 12,465 (4,535)
             Wastewater Fund sales 17,000 7,368 (9,632)
             Cable Fund sales 3,400 4,536 1,136
             IRMS sales 3,400 (3,400)
             Sale of fuel     400,000 472,589 72,589

Total 599,981 660,050 60,069

Total operating revenues 1,991,836 2,009,712 17,876

Nonoperating revenues :
    Sale of materials 6,321 7,121 800

 Total revenues 1,998,157 2,016,833 18,676
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES :
    IRMS :
         Salaries and employee benefits $280,568
         Operating expenditures 396,368

Total IRMS 647,520 676,936 (29,416)

    Warehouse :
         Salaries and employee benefits 91,105
         Operating expenditures 34,399
         Purchases of inventory 531,053
         Pro rata administrative services (125,172)

Total warehouse 533,309 531,385 1,924

    Garage :   
         Salaries and employee benefits 190,783
         Operating expenditures 73,741
         Purchases of inventory 184,049
         Purchases of fuel 450,667
         Pro rata administrative services (316,026)

Total garage 575,000 583,214 (8,214)

    Budgetary appropriations :   
         Capital outlay 242,328 25,895 216,433

Total expenditures 1,998,157 1,817,430 180,727

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
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IRMS, WAREHOUSE AND GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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2008

Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES Nil $199,403 $199,403

RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL
   BASIS TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS :

Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)
   Expenditures and Other Uses $199,403

      Add :
            Cost of expenditures which were capitalized $25,895 $25,895

      Less :
            Depreciation (94,908)
            Decrease in inventory (608)
            Increase in accrued vacation pay (2,285) (97,801)

Total Change in Net Assets 127,497

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 2,022,007

NET ASSETS - End of Year $2,149,504

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
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Exhibit G-1

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2007 Additions and Credits June 30, 2008

2007-2008 $7,768,135 $7,660,009 $108,126
2006-2007 $120,725 95,378 25,347
2005-2006 38,106 22,874 15,232
2004-2005 27,480 15,662 11,818
2003-2004 24,075 11,476 12,599
2002-2003 25,136 11,735 13,401
2001-2002 23,217 12,164 11,053
2000-2001 11,949 608 11,341
1999-2000 9,207 586 8,621
1998-1999 8,524 254 8,270
1997-1998 7,762 7,762

TOTAL $296,181 $7,768,135 $7,838,508 $225,808

    Less Allowance for Doubtful 
       Accounts 111,246
    Net Property Tax Receivable 
       (Exhibit 1) $114,562

RECONCILEMENT WITH REVENUES :
    Taxes - ad valorem - General Fund
       (Exhibit 4) $7,787,684
    Less interest collected (44,879) 7,742,805$  
    Discounts 81,946
    Releases - Prior years 6,080
    Amount written off for tax year
       1997-1998 per statute of limitations 7,677

TOTAL COLLECTIONS AND CREDITS 7,838,508$  
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Exhibit G-2

Total
Property Amount Excluding Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles

TAX LEVY :   
    City-wide $1,532,182,826 0.46 $7,048,041 $7,048,041
    Special district 78,199,285 0.14 109,479 109,479
    Vehicle Taxes 108,455,217 0.46 498,894 $498,894

     PENALTIES 5,057 5,057

     ADD DISCOVERIES :
         Current year 31,663,261 0.46 145,651 144,646 1,005
         Prior year 275,000 0.46 1,265 1,265

     LESS RELEASES (8,750,435) (40,252) (29,186) (11,066)

TOTAL $1,742,025,154 $7,768,135 $7,279,302 $488,833

LESS UNCOLLECTED TAXES AT
   June 30, 2008 108,126 46,081 62,045

CURRENT YEAR'S TAXES COLLECTED $7,660,009 $7,233,221 $426,788

PERCENT CURRENT YEAR COLLECTED 98.61% 99.37% 87.31%
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Exhibit G-3

Transfers Transfers
From To

General Fund :
   From Electric Fund $637,495
   From Water Fund 40,000
   From Capital Reserve Fund 185,555
   To Community House Fund 91,700

          Total 863,050 91,700

Capital Reserve Fund:
   To General Fund 185,555

          Total 185,555

Water Fund :
   To Electric Fund 87,456
   To General Fund 40,000
   To Wastewater Fund 193,434

          Total 320,890

Wastewater Fund :
   From Water Fund 193,434

          Total 193,434

Cable Fund :
   From Electric Fund 150,000

          Total 150,000

Community House Fund :
   From General Fund 91,700

          Total 91,700

Electric Fund :
   From Water Fund 87,456
   To General Fund 637,495
   To Cable Fund 150,000

          Total 87,456 787,495

          Grand Totals $1,385,640 $1,385,640
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Exhibit G-4

Carrying
Value Cost Value Fair Value

CASH :
     On hand $2,495 $2,495 $2,495
     In demand deposits 1,777,855 1,777,855 1,777,855
     In time deposits - NOW, SuperNOW, 
       money market and certificates of 
       deposit 20,156,876 20,156,876 20,156,876

Total cash 21,937,226 21,937,226 21,937,226

INVESTMENTS :
     North Carolina Capital Management
        Trust 3,078,833 3,078,833 3,078,833
     Government Agencies : 
          Federal Home Loan Bank Bonds (3) 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,990,320
          Federal Home Loan Mortgage
               Corporation Bonds (3) 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,992,990
          Federal National Mortgage
               Association Bonds (3) 2,822,000 2,822,000 2,806,368

Total investments (including cash
       equivalents) 11,900,833 11,868,511

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $33,838,059 $33,805,737
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CITY OF MORGANTON 

 
 STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 JUNE 30, 2008 
 
 
This part of the City of Morganton’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information 
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, notes disclosures, and 
required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health 
 
 
Contents           Pages 
 
Financial Trends           86-95 
            These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
            understand how the government’s financial performance and 
            well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity          96-99 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess  
the government’s most significant local revenue source, the  
property tax. 
 

Debt Capacity          100-103 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess 
the affordability of the government’s current levels of  
outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue  
additional debt in the future. 
 

Demographic and Economic Information          104-105  
            These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to  
            Help the reader understand the environment within which the  
            Government’s financial activities take place. 
    
Operating Information                    106-108 
      These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to 
      help the reader understand how the information in the  
      government’s financial report relates to the services the  
      government provides and the activities it performs. 
 
 
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. 



City of Morganton
Net Assets by Component,
Last Six Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004

Governmental activities
     Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $42,517,541 $42,270,377
     Restricted 1,402,102 1,428,875
     Unrestricted 11,487,466 12,219,489
Total governmental activities net assets $55,407,109 $55,918,741

Business-type activities
     Invested in capital asssets, net of related debt $42,567,661 42,251,982
     Unrestricted 26,266,393 26,916,570
Total business-type activities net assets $68,834,054 $69,168,552

Primary government
     Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $85,085,202 $84,522,359
     Restricted 1,402,102 1,428,875
     Unrestricted 37,753,859 39,136,059
Total primary government net assets $124,241,163 $125,087,293

Note:  The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement
34 in fiscal year 2003.

Fiscal Year
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2005 2006 2007 2008

$42,225,042 $41,695,614 $41,831,482 $40,439,879
716,926 1,260,371 745,287 1,404,040

12,207,920 12,339,129 14,704,160 15,287,650
$55,149,888 $55,295,114 $57,280,929 $57,131,569

46,132,330 45,875,917 56,874,381 48,204,805
22,771,585 23,181,717 11,302,071 17,210,171

$68,903,915 $69,057,634 $68,176,452 $65,414,976

$88,357,372 $87,571,531 $98,705,863 $88,644,684
716,926 1,260,371 745,287 1,404,040

34,979,505 35,520,846 26,006,231 32,497,821
$124,053,803 $124,352,748 $125,457,381 $122,546,545
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City of Morganton
Changes  in Net Assets
Last Six Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004
Expenses
Governmental activities:
        General government $2,255,413 $2,783,081
        Public Safety 5,110,138 5,445,610
        Transportation 1,906,654 2,058,883
        Economic and physical development 138,229 161,712
        Environmental protection 1,096,914 938,734
        Culture and recreation 2,288,112 2,481,282
        Interest on long-term debt 90,423 71,323
Total governmental activities expenses 12,885,883 13,940,625

Business-type activities:
        Water 2,638,295 2,627,701
        Wastewater 3,424,896 3,466,183
        Electric 21,566,422 22,175,865
        Cable 2,312,224 2,886,460
        Community house 273,248 278,758
Total business-type activities expenses 30,215,085 31,434,967
Total primary government expenses 43,100,968 45,375,592

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
      Charges for services:
          General government $225,184 $346,075
          Public Safety 42,491 46,307
          Transportation 8,432 348,430
          Environmental protection 385,593 133,820
          Culture and recreation 578,545 498,904
      Operating Grants and Contributions 954,015 819,867
      Capital Grants and Contributions 167,341 1,468,175
Total governmental activities program revenues 2,361,601 3,661,578

Business-type activities:
      Charges for services:
        Water 3,384,344 3,276,066
        Wastewater 3,472,733 3,347,854
        Electric 22,212,562 22,549,633
        Cable 2,620,155 2,438,572
        Community house 202,335 208,498
      Operating Grants and Contributions 95,328 31,437
Total business-type activities program revenues 31,987,457 31,852,060
Total primary government program revenues $34,349,058 $35,513,638
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2005 2006 2007 2008

$3,391,972 $2,759,135 $2,742,806 $2,853,101
6,448,234 6,613,948 6,590,390 7,094,187
2,375,152 2,209,624 2,244,130 2,476,434

146,743 121,415 10,308 117,668
1,075,471 1,114,664 1,123,568 1,216,620
2,826,391 3,276,853 3,637,977 4,236,367

58,467 47,554 44,385 103,428
16,322,430 16,143,193 16,393,564 18,097,805

2,739,467 2,864,899 3,169,593 3,634,869
3,307,399 3,401,640 3,380,132 4,077,418

22,871,668 24,664,921 25,241,193 26,505,211
3,511,824 3,874,683 4,001,462 4,015,776

312,556 296,857 323,251 312,634
32,742,914 35,103,000 36,115,631 38,545,908
49,065,344 51,246,193 52,509,195 56,643,713

$193,064 $387,459 $283,089 $232,411
53,167 37,253 24,793 46,702

340,468 4,796 4,797 7,656
200,736 351,808 1,093,367 1,062,990
577,595 638,779 628,181 677,243
654,103 873,196 998,104 1,100,958
983,972 709,313 258,646

3,003,105 3,002,604 3,032,331 3,386,606

3,616,616 4,078,099 3,945,198 4,011,287
3,889,286 4,309,576 4,353,978 4,138,754

22,227,843 23,116,052 23,094,949 23,422,320
2,691,868 3,046,581 3,367,112 3,496,493

211,852 199,688 241,420 223,929
22,202 19,415 21,016 21,734

32,659,667 34,769,411 35,023,673 35,314,517
$35,662,772 $37,772,015 $38,056,004 $38,701,123
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Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities ($10,524,282) ($10,279,047)
Business-type activities 1,772,372 417,093
Total primary government net expense ($8,751,910) ($9,861,954)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
     Ad valorem taxes $6,096,559 $6,045,738
     Other taxes and licenses 2,371,323 2,765,497
     Unrestriced intergovernmental revenues 2,432,232 1,534,419
     Investment earnings 286,171 218,499
     Other revenues 39,210 9,786
     Transfers 564,000 503,750
Total governmental activities 11,789,495 11,077,689

Business-type activities:
     Investment earnings 430,203 319,671
     Other revenues 33,838 101,484
     Transfers (564,000) (503,750)
Total business-type activities (99,959) (82,595)
Total primary government $11,689,536 $10,995,094

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities $1,265,213 $798,642
Business-type activities 1,672,413 334,498
Total primary government 2,937,626 1,133,140
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($13,319,325) ($13,140,589) ($13,361,233) ($14,711,199)
(83,247) (333,589) (1,091,958) (3,231,391)

($13,402,572) ($13,474,178) ($14,453,191) ($17,942,590)

$6,628,096 $6,815,478 $7,298,421 7,769,020
2,898,950 2,980,248 4,938,519 3,353,209
1,554,802 1,624,417 827,704 1,936,451

314,002 677,091 519,912 861,266
251,180 334,576 744,259 245,750
903,442 706,054 620,527 585,795

12,550,472 13,137,864 14,949,342 14,751,491

530,398 988,043 862,651 815,522
191,654 205,319 325,647 240,188

(903,442) (706,054) (744,259) (585,795)
(181,390) 487,308 444,039 469,915

$12,369,082 $13,625,172 $15,393,381 $15,221,406

($768,853) ($2,725) $1,588,109 $40,292
(264,637) 153,719 (647,919) (2,761,476)

(1,033,490) 150,994 940,190 (2,721,184)

-91-



City of Morganton
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,
Last Six Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004

General Fund
    Reserved $5,079,308 $5,998,550
    Unreserved 3,764,811 3,765,739
Total general fund $8,844,119 $9,764,289

All Other Governmental Funds
    Unreserved, reported in:
        Special revenue funds $3,366,742 $3,402,321
        Permanent fund 284,695 305,451
Total all other governmental funds $3,651,437 $3,707,772
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2005 2006 2007 2008

$4,756,325 $5,910,316 $5,327,266 $4,465,357
4,434,814 3,779,653 5,067,584 7,321,962

$9,191,139 $9,689,969 $10,394,850 $11,787,319

$3,254,095 3,141,226 3,592,720 3,607,527
320,799 340,995 363,816 390,615

$3,574,894 $3,482,221 $3,956,536 $3,998,142
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City of Morganton
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,
Last Six Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004

Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes $6,048,001 $6,040,286
Other taxes and licenses 2,377,453 2,775,661
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,537,227 1,534,419
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 1,312,634 2,284,280
Other restricted revenues 17,612 126,584
Permits and fees 230,810 224,614
Sales and services 1,915,634 1,015,936
Investment earnings 286,171 218,499
Other revenues 39,210 9,786

Total revenues 13,764,752 14,230,065

Expenditures
General government 2,228,024 3,040,850
Public safety 5,134,812 5,513,212
Transportation 892,680 1,026,053
Environmental protection 952,116 1,123,085
Cultural and recreational 2,723,914 2,547,194
Economic and physical development 178,229 116,972
Interest expense 19,687 16,848
Debt service
        Principal 411,851 505,267
        Interest 75,431 61,441

Total expenditures 12,616,744 13,950,922

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Installment purchase proceeds 240,000 278,352
Transfers in 954,780 603,750
Transfers out (390,780) (184,740)

Total other financing sources (uses) 804,000 697,362

Net change in fund balances $1,952,008 $976,505

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 4.30% 4.60%

Fiscal Year
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2005 2006 2007 2008

$6,663,201 $6,797,506 $7,136,147 $7,787,684
2,906,817 2,988,551 3,111,379 3,353,209
1,554,802 1,624,417 1,827,140 1,936,451
1,780,311 1,532,197 897,398 1,304,340

52,415 42,009 61,109 163,289
139,672 267,267 208,590 176,939

1,022,840 1,152,828 1,865,234 1,850,063
314,002 677,091 827,704 861,266
251,180 334,576 557,160 137,725

14,685,240 15,416,442 16,491,861 17,570,966

4,069,987 2,892,163 2,712,591 5,741,643
6,589,215 6,857,152 6,590,915 7,032,648
1,194,636 1,068,305 1,122,564 1,601,674
1,110,305 962,287 1,186,814 1,344,758
2,852,031 3,805,386 4,386,677 3,935,811

186,743 121,415 50,308 117,668
13,993

521,106 603,254 577,181 452,798
48,963 47,554 50,401 89,346

16,586,979 16,357,516 16,677,451 20,316,346

292,269 641,177 620,527 3,593,660
1,243,442 987,754 1,020,959 1,141,940
(340,000) (281,700) (276,700) (556,145)

1,195,711 1,347,231 1,364,786 4,179,455

($706,028) $406,157 $1,179,196 $1,434,075

3.87% 4.48% 4.42% 3.53%

Fiscal Year
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City of Morganton
Assessed Value of Taxable Property,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Real Personal Taxable
Year Property Property Utilities Value Tax Rate

1998-99 607,460,641 308,480,675 21,556,867 937,498,183 0.46
1999-00 615,543,915 338,210,223 22,046,315 975,800,453 0.46
2000-01 646,390,212 413,945,569 21,876,880 1,082,212,661 0.50
2001-02 887,200,094 422,064,942 26,791,327 1,336,056,363 0.46
2002-03 897,247,348 418,468,674 26,455,745 1,342,171,767 0.46
2003-04 912,047,348 375,130,039 26,160,554 1,313,337,941 0.46
2004-05 923,771,236 378,698,392 25,680,434 1,328,150,062 0.50
2005-06 932,615,658 408,756,364 22,733,688 1,364,105,710 0.50
2006-07 941,205,056 442,488,854 24,582,696 1,408,276,606 0.50
2007-08 1,189,002,621 453,196,142 29,826,794 1,672,025,557 0.46

Notes: Revenue is not broken into different types of rate payers as the
information is not available from Burke County in that format.
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City of Morganton
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates,
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $100 dollar valuation)

City Direct Rates

Basic Special
Tax Tax Burke

Fiscal Year Rate District County

1998-99 0.46 0.14 0.59

1999-00 0.46 0.14 0.59

2000-01 0.50 0.14 0.59

2001-02 0.46 0.14 0.59

2002-03 0.46 0.14 0.59

2003-04 0.46 0.14 0.59

2004-05 0.50 0.14 0.59

2005-06 0.50 0.14 0.59

2006-07 0.50 0.14 0.59

2007-08 0.46 0.14 0.52

Notes:  *Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property
owners within the City of Morganton.  Not all overlapping rates apply to all Morganton property
owners; for example, although Burke County property tax rates apply to all Morganton property
owners, Morganton Downtown District rates apply only to the Morganton property owners
whose property is located within that district's geographical boundaries.

Overlapping Rates (*)
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City of Morganton
Principal Property Tax Payers,
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Continental Teves Inc. $99,985,459 1 5.98%
Viscotec 40,194,895 2 2.40%
HDM Furniture 34,369,922 3 2.06% 18,232,074 4 1.94%
SGL Carbon Corp 33,440,740 4 2.00% 40,335,224 1 4.30%
Sypris 24,819,733 5 1.48%
Leviton 16,318,238 6 0.98% 11,319,837 7 1.21%
Grace Properties Inc. 16,095,103 7 0.96% 10,295,429 10 1.10%
Fiddlers Run LLC 15,572,373 8 0.93%
Caterpillar Inc. 13,385,291 9 0.80%
VPI Inc. 12,358,360 10 0.74%
Dana Corp. 30,017,122 2 3.20%
Drexel Heritage 25,586,755 3 2.73%
BASF 15,440,708 5 1.65%
National Textiles LLC 14,575,106 6 1.55%
Bellsouth Telephone 11,071,052 9 1.18%
Owens Illinois Inc. 11,206,808 8 1.20%

            Total $306,540,114 18.33% $188,080,115 20.06%

Source:  City of Morganton Tax Division
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City of Morganton
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxes Levied Collections
Fiscal for the  Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

1998-99 4,364,413 4,102,622 94.00% 253,267 4,355,889 99.80%

1999-00 4,471,664 4,366,584 97.65% 95,873 4,462,457 99.79%

2000-01 5,279,323 5,179,975 98.12% 87,399 5,267,374 99.77%

2001-02 6,128,460 5,981,901 97.61% 123,342 6,105,243 99.62%

2002-03 6,178,474 5,958,757 96.44% 194,581 6,153,338 99.59%

2003-04 6,084,089 5,925,246 97.39% 134,768 6,060,014 99.60%

2004-05 6,713,167 6,583,691 98.07% 101,996 6,685,687 99.59%

2005-06 6,838,043 6,702,794 98.02% 97,143 6,799,937 99.15%

2006-07 7,123,752 7,003,027 98.31% 95,378 7,098,405 99.64%

2007-08 7,768,135 7,660,009 98.61% N/A 7,003,027 98.31%

Source:  City of Morganton Tax Division

Notes:  Taxes levied include general taxes, special district taxes, and motor vehicle taxes.
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City of Morganton

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type,

Last Six Fiscal Years

General General Total Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Installment Obligation Installment Primary Personal Per

Year Bonds Purchases Bonds Purchases Government Income Capita

2002-03 $330,600 $1,233,790 $14,769,400 $1,159,016 $17,492,806 4.01% $1,011

2003-04 258,400 1,080,037 13,431,600 6,994,023 21,764,060 4.99% 1,274

2004-05 187,150 922,450 12,102,850 5,872,652 19,085,102 4.43% 1,117

2005-06 117,800 1,069,723 10,782,200 4,708,929 16,678,652 3.72% 978

2006-07 49,400 575,819 9,495,600 4,584,937 14,705,756 3.25% 854

2007-08 3,831,159 8,175,000 3,383,319 15,389,478 3.26% 889

Notes:  Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial 

statements.  

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.

Governmental Activities
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City of Morganton
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding,
Last Six Fiscal Years

Bonded Percentage of
Fiscal Debt Assessed Per
Year Outstanding Value Capita

2002-03 $15,100,000 1.13% $873

2003-04 13,690,000 1.04% 802

2004-05 12,290,000 0.93% 720

2005-06 10,900,000 0.80% 640

2006-07 9,545,000 0.07% 554

2007-08 8,175,000 0.05% 472

Notes:  Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements.  

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.
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Direct and Overlapping Debt

As of June 30, 2008

Percentage 

Debt Applicable to the City of Morganton's

Governmental Unit Outstanding City of Morganton Share of Debt

Burke County $6,493,828,605 20.78% $14,231,945

City of Morganton 14,980,241 100.00% 14,980,241

Total direct and overlapping debt $6,508,808,846 $29,212,186

Sources:  Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Burke County

assessor.  Debt outstanding provided by each governmental unit.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic bound-

aries of the City.  This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping

governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Morganton.  This process recognizes 

that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden

borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.  However, this does not

imply that every taxpayer is a resident - and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt - of

each overlapping government.  For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping

debt applicable is estimated using taxable property values.  Applicable percentages were

estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable assessed value that is 

within the City's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value.

City of Morganton
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City of Morganton
Legal Debt Margin Information
As of June 30, 2008

Assessed Value $1,742,025,154

Debt Limit 8% of Assessed Value 139,362,012
Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
Total bonded debt and notes payable 7,710,763
Less: Other Deductions Allowed by Law (7,710,763)
(Water and Wastewater bonds)
Total Amount of Debt Applicable to
Debt Limit 0

Legal Debt Margin 139,362,012

Total Net Debt 
Legal Applicable to the

Fiscal Debt Total Net Debt Debt Limit as a Percentage
Year Limit Applicable to Limit Margin of Debt Limit
2002-03 $107,373,741 $630,880 $106,742,861 0.59%
2003-04 105,067,035 544,694 104,522,341 0.52%
2004-05 110,378,644 7,157,252 103,221,392 6.48%
2005-06 112,174,107 252,800 111,921,307 0.23%
2006-07 116,943,013 49,400 116,893,613 0.04%
2007-08 139,362,012 0 139,362,012 0.00%
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City of Morganton
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Personal
Income Per Capita

Calendar  (thousands Personal Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Rate

2003 17,298 435,529,044 25,178 9.3%
2004 17,080 435,659,560 25,507 7.6%
2005 17,080 430,757,600 25,220 8.3%
2006 17,041 429,774,020 25,220 5.9%
2007 17,224 453,060,096 26,304 6.1%
2008 17,310 472,476,450 27,295 8.6%

Morganton Development and Design, US Department of Commercde, and Bureau of Economic
Analysis.

Per capital source:  Bureau of Economic Analysis/Burke County

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.

Sources:  Information provided by the U.S. Census, N.C. Office of State Planning, City of 
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City of Morganton
Principal Employers,
Current Year

Percentage
of Total Burke County

Employer Employees Rank Employment

State of North Carolina 2,500 1 6.03%
Burke Public Schools 2,300 2 5.55%
Blue Ridge Healthcare / Grace Hospital 1,709 3 4.12%
Turning Point Services 1,000 4 2.41%
Case Farms 790 5 1.91%
Leviton Manufacturing Co. 617 6 1.49%
Burke County 616 7 1.49%
Western Piedmont College 550 8 1.33%
City of Morganton 536 9 1.29%
Continental Teves Inc. 457 10 1.10%

            Total 11,075 26.72%

*Information not available for nine year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.

Sources:  Burke Partnership for Economic Development and North Carolina Employment Security 

Notes:  2007 Burke County Labor Force is 41,452.
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City of Morganton
Full-time-Equivalent City Government Employees by Function
Last six years

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General Government 58 57 57 57 57 62
Public Safety 101.5 102.5 101.5 102 103 104
Transportation 31 31 31 31 31 31
Environmental Protection 16 13 13 13 13 13
Cultural & Recreation 20 20 22.25 23.25 23.25 23.25
IRMS 5 5 5 5 5 6
Electric 26 26 26 26 26 26
Cable 8 8 8 8 8 8
Water 21 21 22 22 22 22
Wastewater 27 27 27 27 27 27
Community House 3 3 3 3 3 3
Total 316.5 313.5 315.75 317.25 318.25 325.25

Source:  City Budget Office

Notes:  A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vacation and sick).
Full-time-equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total lobor hours by 2,080.

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30
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City of Morganton
Operating Indicators by Function / Program
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

General Government
Building Permits Issued 354
Building Inspections Conducted 5,774
Total City Employees - Full-time 292
Total City Employees - Part-time 244

Police
Physical Arrests (18 years and over) (annual) 2,127
Parking Violations 1,060
Number of Police Employees - Officers 65
Number of Police Employees - Civilians 33
Number of Police Employees - Reserves 2
Number of Calls Responded 27,018
Number of Traffic Accidents 1,096

Fire Protection
Fire Calls 413
Number of Fire Personnel - Paid 16
Number of Fire Personnel - Volunteer 12
Fire Inspections 615

Electric
Customers 8,253

Public Works
Refuse Collection (tons per day) 32
Recyclables Collected (tons per day) 2
Residential Collection Trucks 3

Water Treatment Facility
Customers 12,500
Consumptions 3,173,000,000

Wastewater
Customers 6,600
Average Daily Sewage Treatment (thousands of gallo 4,420

Cable Television
Subscribers / Customers 4,986
Basic Channels 77
Premium Channels 64

Sources: Various City Departments.

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.
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City of Morganton
Capital Asset Statistics by Function / Program
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Police
Stations 1
Patrol units 79

Fire Protection
Fire Stations 3

Electric
Miles of Service 269

Public Works
Miles of Streets 87.88
Primary Streets 86.79
Secondary Streets 1.09
Streetlights 3,408
Traffic Signals 58

Water Treatment Facility
Plants 17
Miles of Distribution Lines 311
Fire Hydrants 1,200
Storage Capacity (millions of gallons) 8.85

Wastewater
Plants 1
Miles of Collection Lines 198

Cable Television
Miles of plant 161

Parks and Recreation
Acreage 680
Playgrounds 9
Parks  13
Baseball fields 15
Soccer fields 4
Community Centers 2
Aquatic Facilities 2

Sources: Various City of Morganton Departments.

*Information not available for ten year comparison.  Tables will be built over time.

Fiscal Year 2007-08
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S. Eric Bowrnan, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Grsen Str€et
P.O. Box 1476
Morganton, NC 28680-'1476
T€lephona (828) 438-1065
Fax (828) 438-91 17

Report on Internal Control over Financia.l Reporting

And on  compl iance and o ther  Mat te rs  Based on  an  Aud i t  o f

Fi-nancia.I Statenents Perforned In Accordance Witfi

Government Auditinq Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of  the Ci ty  Counci f
Ci ty  of  MorganLon,  Nor th Carof lna

lte have audited the accompany.ing financial statenents of the governmentaL

act iv i t les,  the business- type act iv i t ies,  the aggregate d iscrete ly  presented

component units, each rnajor fund, and the aggregated remaj-ning fund informat-ion

of the city of Morganton, North carolj-na. as of and for the year ended ,fune 30,

2008.  which col . lect iveLy compr ises the c i ty  of  Morganton 's  basic  f inancia l
statements dated August L5, 2008. We did not audit the financ.ial statements of

the city of I,torganton ABC Board. Those financial statenents were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion,

insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the city of Morganton ABc

Boaxd,  is  based soleLy on the repor ts  of  the other  audi tors,  v le  conducted our

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

states of Anerica and the standards appllcable to financial audits contained in

Government Audj-tinq standards issued by the comptroller Genelal of the united
Si j tes.  The f inancia l  s tatements of  the Ci ty  of  Morganton ABC Board were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Contro.l Over Financi-a.I Reportinq

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Morganton,s in ternal  contro l  over  f inancia l  rePort ing as a basis  for  designing

our auditing procedures for the Purpose of expressj-ng our opj-nions on the

fj-nancia.I statenents, but not for the Purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the City of Morganton's interna.l control over financj-af
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of

the c i ty  of  Morganton 's  in ternal  contro. I  over  f inancia l  repor t ing '

our consideration of internal control over fj-nancial reporting was for

the linited purpose descrj-bed in the preceding paragraph and woufd not
necessarily identj-fy all deficiencies j-n internal contro] over financial

repor t ing that  n ight  be s igni f icant  def ic ienc ies or  mater la l  weaknesses '
However,  as d iscussed below,  we ldent i f ied cer ta in def ic ienc ies j -n  in ternal

control over financial- rceport.ing that we consider to be signifj-cant
def ic ienc. ies.



To the Ilonorable Uayor and
Metnbers of the City CounciL
City of Morganton, North Caro.Iina

A control. deficiency exists when the design or oPexation of a,control

does not aLJ.ow nanagement or empfoyees, in the normal' course of performing

their assigned funciions, to pr-vent or detect misstatenents on a tirnefy basis'

A signj.fic;nt deficiency is a control- deficiency. or cornbination of control

def ic ienc ies,  that  adversely  af fects  the Ci ty  of  Morganton 's  abi l i ty  to

initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reU'ably in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there fs

more than a remote Iikelihood that a rnisstatement of the city of Morganton's

financj-aL statenents that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or

detected by the Cj ty  of  Morganton 's  in ternat  controL '  v{e consider  the

deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

c o s t s a s 2 o o ? - 1 a n d 2 0 0 8 - 2 t , o b e s i g n i . f i c a n t d e f i c i e n c i e s i n i n t e r n a l c o n t r o - I
over financial xeporting.

A rnaterial leakness is a significant deficiencyt or conbination of

significant deficjencies, that results in rnore than a renote likelihood that a

material mj.sstatenent of the financial statements e{i}I not be prevented or

detected by the City of Morgantont s internaf control'

our consideration of the internaf contro.l over financial rePorting was

for the linited Purpose described in the first Paragraph of this section and

woul-d not necesslrily identify a1f deficiencies in the internal control that

rn-ight be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, woul-d not necessariJ'y

discl_ose a1i significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material

weaknesses. However, we believe none of the significant deficiencies described

above is a materi-al weakness.

Conpliance and other Matters

As part of obtaj-ning reasonable assurance about whether the City of

Morganton's fj-nancial statements are free of material misstatement' we

periormed tests of its conPlj-ance with certain Provisions of laws, regulations'

contracts and grant agreernlnts, nonconpliance with !'hich could have a direct

and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts,

However, providing an opj-nion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit and, accordingly, vre did not express such an oPinion'

The resuJ.ts of our tests discJosed no instances of noncompliance and other

matters that are reguired to be reported under Government Auditinq Standards '

city of Morgantont s response to the findings identified in our audit j-s

described in the acconpanying schedule of findings and questioned costs' Ige

d.id not audit city of Morganton's response and, accordingly, we exPress no

opinion on it,

This report is intended soleJ-y for the information and use of the audit

conudttee. managenent, others within the organization, meII )ers of the City

Councj"I, and Federal and state awarding agencies and Pass-through entities and
j-s not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specific

p a r t i e s ,

o - n ' '.4', /)--'/
S. Er ic  Bowman.  P,  A.
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolj-na
A u q u s t  1 5 . 2 0 0 8
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S. Dric Bowman, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 Soulh Gre€n Streat
P.O. Box 1476
Morganton, NC 28680-1476
Tslaphon€ (828) 438-1065
Fax (828) 438-9117

Report On CompLiance With Reguirements Applicable
To f ts  Ma jor  Federa l  Progran And In te rna l  Cont ro l

Over Compfiance In Accordance Witb oMB Cixcular A-133
and the  Sta te  S inq le  Aud i t  Imp. Iementa t ion  Ac t

To the Honorable Mayor and
Menbers of the City Council
C i ty  o f  Morganton ,  Nor tb  Caro l ina

conpliance

Ile have audited the compliance of the City of Morganton, North Carol-ina,

with the types of compliance requirenents described in the 9..,- j-,-!EE!99-9!

Manaqenent and Budqet (oMB) circul.ar A-133 compliance supp.lement and the Audit

Manuaf for Governnental- Auditors in North Carolina. issued by the Local

Government Conmission, that ane applicable to its major federal program for the
year  ended June 30 ,  2008.  The C i ty  o f  lu lo rganton 's  na jo r  federaL prograrn  is

identif ied in the summary of auditor's results sectjon of the accompanying

schedule of f indings and guestioned costs. Complj-ance wj'th the requirements of

laws,  regu la t ions ,  con t rac ts  and gran ts  app l i cab te  to  i t s  ma jor  federa l  p rogran

is  the  respons j -b i l i t y  o f  the  c i ty  o f  Morganton 's  management .  our
respons ib i l i t y  i s  to  express  an  op j -n ion  on  the  C i ty  o f  Morganton 's  compl j -ance

based on our audi t.

[{e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generaJ.ly accepted in the United States of l lmerj-cai the standaxds applicabfe to

financia.l audits contained in Government Auditinq Standards. issued by the

Compt ro f . le r  Genera l  o f  the  Un i ted  Sta tes ;  and OMB Ci rcu la r  A-133,  Aud i ts  o f

s ta tes ,  LocaJ .  Governments ,  and Non-Pro f i t  o rqan j -za t ions ,  and the  s ta te  S ing le

Audjt Inplenentatjon Act, Those standards. OMB Circulan A-133, and the State

Single Audit ImpLementation Act require that lJe pfan and perforn the audit to

obtain reasonab.l-e assurance about whether noncornpliance with the tyPes of

conpliance requirenents referred to above that could have a dj-rect and material

effect on a rnajor federal program occurred. An audit includes examining. on a

tes t  bas is ,  ev idence about  the  c i ty  o f  Morganton 's  comp.L iance w i th  those

regu i rements  and per fo rming  such o ther  p rocedures  as  we cons idered necessary  in

Lhe circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonabJ-e basis for

our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of

Morganton's compliance wj-th those reguj-renents '

In  our  op in ion ,  the  c i ty  o f  Morganton  compl ied ,  in  a l l  mater ia . l  respec ts ,

lrjth the requirements referred to above that are apPlicable to its major

federa l  Droqram fo r  the  vear  ended June 30 ,  2008.



To the Honorab.le Mayor and
Metnbers of the City Council
City of Morganton, North Carolina

Internal Control Over ConDliance

The rnanagenent of the City of Morganton is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over cornpliance with requirements of
tavrs, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal' programs. rn
planning and performj-ng our audit, we considered the city of Morganton's
internal control over conpliance with requj-renents that coufd have a direct
and material effect on a najor federal prograrn in order to deternine our
auditing Procedures for the purpose of exPressing our opinion on complj'ance and
to test and report on internal control over cornpliance in accordance vlith OMB
circufar A-133 and the state Single Audit Impl-ementation Act. Accordingly, we
do not express an opj-nj.on on the effectiveness of the city of Morganton's
internal. contro.l over comDliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance
exists when the desj-gn or operation of a control does not allow management or
ernployees, i.n the normal course of perfonnj-ng their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of comPliance requi-rernent of a
federal prograln on a tilnel.y basis. A sj.gnificant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the
entity's ability to admj-nister a federal Progran such that there is more than a
renote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of conp.Iiance reguirement of a
federal progr:rm that is more than inconseguential wiu not be Prevented or
detected by the City of Morganton's internal. control.

A naterial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combinat:j-on of
sigmificant deficiencies, that resul-ts in more than a remote likelihood that
material noncompJ-iance with a tl4)e of compliance reguirement of a federal
progran wil] not be prevented or detected by the City of Morganton's internaL
controL

our consideration of internal control- over compliance was for tbe .lj-mited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not
necessarily identify aII deficiencies in internal control that might be
sigmificant deficiencies or materiaL weaknesses' we did not identify any
deficiencies in j.nternal control over cornpliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the i-nformation and use of the audit
conmj-ttee, management, others within the organization. rnenbers of city counci.l-,
and federal and State awarding agencies and Pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and shoul-d not be used by anyone other than these specif.ied
p a r t i e s .

J. -t-,8-J
S,  Er ic  Bowmanr  P .A.
Certif ied Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
A u g u s t  1 5 , 2 0 0 8
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S. Eric Bowman, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Grsen Strost
P.O. Box 1476
Morganlon, NC 2868G1476
Talsphone (828) 438-1065
Fax (828) 438.9117

Report On Compliance w.ith Reguirements APpl' icabl-e
To lts Major State Proqran And Internaf Control-

over compliance In Accordance Wlth Applicable
sec t ions  o f  oMB c i rcu la r  A-133 and the

Sta te  S ing . Ie  Aud i t  Inp lementa t ion  Ac t

To the  HonoxabLe Mayor  and
Members of the City Council
C i ty  o f  Morganton ,  Nor th  Caro l ina

Compliance

we have audited the conpliance of the City of Morganton, North Carolina.

with the t14res of compliance reguirements described in the Audit Manuaf for

Governmental Auditors in North carolina, issued by the Local Government

Commission, that are applicable to its major State progran for the year ended

June 30 ,  2008.  The C i ty  o f  Morganton 's  ma jor  S ta te  Program is  ident i f ied  in

the  summary  o f  aud i to r ' s  xesuLts  sec t ion  o f  the  accompany ing  schedu le  o f

findings and guestioned costs. compliance with tbe reguj-rements of laws,

regu la t ions .  con t rac ts  and gran ts  app l i cab le  to  i t s  ma jor  S ta te  p rogram is  the

respons ib i l i t y  o f  the  C i ty  o f  Morganton 's  management .  Our  respons ib i l i t y  i s  to

express  an  op in . ion  on  the  C i ty  o f  Morganton 's  compl iance based on  our  aud i t .

I^le conducted our audit of cornplj"ance in accordance with auditing standalds
genera l l y  accepted  in  the  Un i ted  s ta tes  o f  Aner ica i  the  s tandards  app l j . cab le  to
fj-nancial audits contained in Gover nent Auditinq Standards, issued by the

conptrolfer ceneral of the united states; and apPlicable sect.ions of oMB

CircuJ-ar A-133, as descr.ibed in the Audit Manual for Governrnental Auditors in

Nor th  CaroL ina ,  and the  Sta te  S ing ]e  Aud i t  Imp lementa t ion  Ac t ,  Those

s tandards ,  app l i cab le  sec t ions  o f  OMB Ci rcu la r  A-133,  and the  Sta te  S ing ]e

Audit Impl-enentation Act require that we pfan and perform the aud.it to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of cornplj-ance

reguirements referred to above that could have a direct and rnaterial- effect on

a najor State program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test bas.is,

evj-dence about the City of Morganton's cornpliance with those reguirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances. }ie believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion. our audit does not provide a leqa.l determinatj.on on the city of

Morganton's cornpliance with those reguirenents.

In our opinion, the City of Morganton complied, in alf material- respects,

with the xequirenents referred to above that axe applicable to its major State
progran fo r  the  year  ended June 30 ,  2008.
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To the l lonorabLe Mayor and
Members of the City Councif
City of Horganton, North Carol-ina

Internal Controf over Conpli-ance

The nanagenent of the city of Morganton is responsible for establishj-ng
and maintaj-ning effective internal- contro.l over comp.Liance wj.th requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In
planning and performing our audit, ne considered the city of Morganton's
internal control over conp.Liance with reguirements that coul.d have a direct and
material effect on a najor state progran in order to deternine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on conpl"iance and to test
and report on internal control. over compliance in accordance with applicable
sections of OMB Cj.rcular A-1.33 and the State Slngle Audit lmplenentation Act.
Accordj-ng1y, vre do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the city of
Morganton's internal. controf over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entj-ty's internal contro.I over comPliance
exists rdhen the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normaL course of perforning their assigned functions. to
prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance xeguirement of a
state progran on a tinely basj-s. A s.ignificant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or conbination of controL deficiencies that adversely affects the
entity's abiJ-ity to administer a state program such that there is more than a -
renote likelihood that noncompliance grith a tyPe of comPliance reguirement of a
state program that is more than inconsequential will not be Prevented or
detected by the City of Morganton's internal control.

A naterial ueakness is a slgnificant deficiency, or cornbination of
significant deficiencies, that results in nore than a remote l-ikelihood that
materiaL noncornpliance with a t)pe of compliance requirement of a state Program
will not be prevented or detected by the City of Morganton's internal control .

our consideration of interna] control over comPliance was for tbe limj-ted
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not
necessari--ly identj-fy a1l deficiencies in internal control that might be
signifj.cant deficiencies or material weaknesses. we did not identify any
deficiencies in internaf control over cornpliance that we consider to be
material. weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit
corunittee, nanagement r others within the organization, menbers of City Councif.
and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and .is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
Dart Ies.

,Z L /3J
s.  Er ic  Bowman,  P.A.
Certified PubLic Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
A u g u s t  1 5 , 2 0 0 8



- 1 1 5 -

CITY OF UORGANTON, NORTB CEROLIT{A

SCIEDUIIB OF FINDINGS AND OUESTXONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JI'NE 30' 2OO8

sectlon L Suularv of Auditor's Results

Financlal Stat€nents

TllI)€ of auditor I s report lssued: UnguaLified

Internal control over finadcial rePorting:

* Matelial weakn€ss (es) ldentified? -yes -Lno

. * signifLcant deficiencles identifled
that are not coneidered to be
naterial weaknesses -Lyes -none reported

NoncodpLiance nat€rlal to linanclal
statenents not€d -Jes lno

F€deral Awards

Internal contlol over nal or federal programs:

* lLatetial weaknesa (es I identified? -yea lno

* R€portabl.e condition (s) ldentified
that are not consldered to be
nateriaJ. neaknesses --Jes -Lnone tePorted

llT)e of audltorra report iagued on cmpliance
for najor federa.l ptograms: Ungualified

Any audit findings diaclosed that are reguired
to be repolted in accordance wlth section
510 (a) of Clrcutar A-133 --Jes -x no

. Identificatton of naJor federal' progran:

cmA Nuubers Name8 of Fsderaf Proqram or Cluste!

f4,2Lg lt.s. Departnent of gousing aDd ltrban Developnent -

C@unLty Deve.l otment Block Grant
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CITY OT UORGANTON, NORTS CAROI,INA

FOR TgE YEAR ENDED .]UNE 30, 2OO8

SectloD f . Slmary of Auditolra Resulta

DoJ.Iar threshold uged to distinguish b€tween
Tl/I)e A and ?!4pe B Prograns

Auditee gualified aa los-lisk audltee?

Stat€ Aralda

.Int$:!al control ov€r maj o! State prograns t

* ltatellaL reakneas (es) identifted?

r Reportable condltl.on (s) identified
that are lot coosid€r€d to be
laterlal $eakn€saes

Tlpe of audltorrs report l,ssued on ccq>Ilance
for Dajor State programs: 0ngualifled

Any audlt flndinga dlsclosed that ale reguired
to be leported ln accordance rith the State
Slngle Audit lryl€!trent atloa Act

IdeDtlfLcation of lal or state progEam3

Ploqran Nape

Powell Bill Program

$300,000

-l!J,es _no

-yea Xno

vea _Lnone reported

vEg X n o
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CITY OF !.'ORGANTON, NORTH CAROIINA

SCHEDU],E OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Findinos Retated to the Audit of the Basic
Fj-nancial Statements of City of Morqanton:

2 0 0 8 - 1

Cond i t ion :

Cr i te r ia :

E f fec t :

C a u s e :

The City does not incorporate an
internal  audi t  funct ion (person) .

Due to the conpfexity and diverse
type of  f j -nancia l  t ransact ions an
internal. audit function is needed.

Internal controls are less effective
without an internal audit function.

Due to the size of the municiPality
it has not been considered cost
ef fect ive.

Hire an additional empJ-oyee familiar
lrith governmen!a.l accountj-ng
transactions to Provide this service.

ft is not economicaJ.J.y teasibLe to
hire additiona] staff at this ti-ne.

Recotrunendati-on:

Managenent
Response :

2008-2

condition;

Cr i ter ia :

Ef fect :

Recomnendation:

Controls over revenues co]lected at the
City Auditoriun are not adeguate.

controls should be adequate to matcb
t ickets so ld wi th funds col ]ected.

Any potential nisaPploPriation of assets
can not be readily detected in the normaL
course of business.

The City has not ProPerLy imPlemented
established controls.

I{e recorunend installing cash registers
and possibfy better software to
adeguatety account for levenue coLlected,
particularly presale tickets.

vfe agree with this fj-nding.
Management
Response :



Section frl.

Sectlon fV,
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Flndinqs and Questioned costs Related to Federal
Awarda !

None Reported.

Findinqs and QueetLoned costs Related to State
Awards I

None Reported.
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CITY OFMORGAI.ITON

SCIIEDI'LB OFE (PET.IDITIJRBS OFFBDERAL AND STATts AWARDS

FOR TIIB Y'EARE}.IDD JI,'NE 30.2OO8

Gmtor
Pass-Ttmrgh Graotor

Prcrrm Titlc

Fedcral Awards:
Cash Pmgraos:

U.S. Deartnlot ofHousing md
tlbm Dcvclolmcot
Dircct Progran:

CDBGclad

U.S. DcDortmcot of Iugtioc
Passcd thouih N.C. Dcportncort of

Ginc Cdd adPublic Saftttl
JAGGruI

Total Fdlrat Cash Axrudg

Fdcral Stdc
CFDA Pass.Thougb

Numbcr Gmtor'sNumba

142t8

16.738 BE -306
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Federal
(Direct and

Pass-Through) State Local
Exoenditures Exoenditures Expenditures

$ 158 490 $

I646 2 882

$ 16? 1116 $ S 2 882



C TY OFMORGANTON

SCTIEDIJLE OF DPENDITIJRES FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JI.'NE 30. 2OO8

State Awards:
Cash Programs:

N,C. Department of Transportation
Powell Bill

N.C. Deoartnent of Public Instruction
Intervention/Prel,ention Program

N.C. Departuent of Park and Recreation
PartfGrant

Total State Cash Awards

Total Federal and State Awads

Note I - Basis of hesentation:

The accoryanying sc,hedule of Federal and State awards includes the Fedcal aod Stat€ graff adivity
ofthe City ofMorganton and is preseoted on the modified acoual basis ofaccormting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requiremeots of OMB Circular A-1 33 , Audits of States,
Iocal Govcmments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Iryl€rncotation Act.
Therefore, some aoounts pr€seoted in this schedule may diffcr from amounts presented io, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statemer s.

Note 2 - Loans Outstandins:

The City ofMorganton had the following loan balance outstanding at June 30, 2008.

Prosrdm Title

Section 108 HUD Loan

Federal CFDA

14.219

Amount
Outstandine

$ 5s 000



- t22 -

Exnendituras
State Local

Exnenditures Expenditures

s 729 9t0

186 448

2s0 000 250 000

I 166 3s8 2s0 000

$l-166-35S $----J52382

$

q  r 6 7  1 1 6



 


	01-2008 CAFR First Page
	Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
	City Council
	Mel L. Cohen, Mayor
	Prepared by the City of Morganton’s Finance Department




	02-City Seal
	03-2008 CAFR Table of Contents
	CITY OF MORGANTON
	CITY OF MORGANTON
	CITY OF MORGANTON

	04a-letter of transmittal formatted i-v
	Profile of the Government
	Factors Affecting Financial Condition
	Acknowledgements

	04b-2008 CAFR City-wide Org Chart
	                                                                                             City of Morganton
	Organization Chart

	05-Bowman letter 01-02
	06-2008 CAFR MD&A 03-12
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis
	Financial Highlights
	Overview of the Financial Statements

	-4-
	Required Components of Annual Financial Report
	Figure 1
	Basic Financial Statements
	-5-
	Government-wide Financial Statements
	Fund Financial Statements
	Government-Wide Financial Analysis

	The City of Morganton’s Net Assets
	City of Morganton’s Changes in Net Assets
	Capital Asset and Debt Administration  
	Capital assets.  The City of Morganton’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2008 totals $103,636,784 (net of accumulated depreciation).  These assets include land, buildings, plant and system, equipment and infrastructure.  
	There were not any major capital asset transactions during the year.  There were not significant demolitions or disposals.
	City of Morganton’s Capital Assets
	(Net of accumulated depreciation)
	City of Morganton’s Outstanding Debt
	General Obligation Bonds

	Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
	Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008
	Requests for Information


	07-2008 CAFR Pages 13-30
	Page 13
	Page14-15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19-25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29-30

	08-2008 CAFR 31-62
	JUNE 30, 2008
	Deposits and investments
	Net assets/fund balances
	Construction commitments
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Year Ending June 30   Principal Interest
	Debt Margin
	June 30, 2007
	Increases
	Decreases
	June 30, 2008
	Balance




	09-2008 CAFR Pages 63-85
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65-67
	Page 68-70
	Page 71-73
	Page 74-76
	Page 77-78
	Page 79-81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85

	10-City Seal
	11-2008 CAFR Stat section
	CITY OF MORGANTON

	12-2008 CAFR 86-108
	Pages 86-87
	Pages 88-91
	Pages 92-93
	Pages 94-95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100 
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page108

	13-109-110-Bowman
	14-111-112-Bowman
	15-113-114-Bowman
	16-115-118-Bowman
	17-City Seal
	18-119-122-Bowman
	19-City Seal

